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          1  SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHARTER REFORM

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, and

          3  good morning. My name is Gifford Miller, I am Chair

          4  of the Select Committee on Charter Reform. I want to

          5  welcome you all here.  I apologize for the little

          6  bit of a late start, I will get to why it is that we

          7  started a little bit late in a moment or two.

          8                 I want to recognize my colleague Bill

          9  Perkins who is here, also a member of the Select

         10  Committee, and Adolpho Carrion was just here and I

         11  expect he will be back in just a moment.

         12                 I am also joined by Andrew Newman,

         13  Counsel to the Committee, as well as other members

         14  of staff of the Committee.

         15                 This Select Committee has issued an

         16  oversight report regarding the most recent New York

         17  City Charter Revision Commission appointed by Mayor

         18  Giuliani on June 15th, 1999. The Commission is

         19  presenting 14 proposals as a single ballot question

         20  at the November 2nd, 1999 election.

         21                 As many of you may remember, and many

         22  of the people in this room were here, this is the

         23  second year that this Committee has constituted

         24  itself as a result of the Mayor's efforts to

         25  constitute Charter Reform. In this capacity last
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          2  year, I witnessed firsthand the abuse of the Charter

          3  Revision process, including a Commission that was

          4  created for purely political reasons, a rushed

          5  agenda, a lack of diversity from the panel, and

          6  hearings held in the middle of summer preventing

          7  voters from having adequate input in the process for

          8  its outcome.

          9                 The result was a poorly thought out

         10  initiative, proposed in a misleading fashion, which

         11  when adopted has actually undermined the legislative

         12  scheme on campaign finance and resulted in

         13  consequences entirely unintended by its authors.

         14                 As I sit here today, I am reminded of

         15  the words of the great Yankee philosopher Yogi

         16  Beara, "This feels like deja vu all over again."

         17                 By all accounts, this Commission was

         18  initially charged with changing the line of Mayoral

         19  succession so that the Public Advocate could not

         20  automatically succeed the Mayor if he is elected to

         21  the United Senate.

         22                 Thus, the initial purpose behind the

         23  Commission's formation, which had little to do

         24  substantive Charter reform, and more to do with

         25  politics, is clearly improper.
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          2                 As to the process employed by this

          3  Commission in conducting its work, it is a rush to

          4  judgment that cannot properly serve the long-term

          5  interests of the City. The lack of independence and

          6  balance present amongst the Commission members,

          7  coupled with a process that was void of thorough

          8  debate from all sides regarding the proposed

          9  amendments weakens the Charter.

         10                 Charter reform should be based on

         11  general principles, and subject to an extensive

         12  dialogue with broad-based public participation.

         13                 The Major findings of this Committee

         14  with regard to the Commission, its purpose, process

         15  and product, which are contained in the draft report

         16  -- and I assume everyone here has a copy of it. If

         17  you don't, please proceed to come forward and get a

         18  copy of it -- are as follows:

         19                 The Mayor has misused the Charter

         20  revision process as a weapon and has tainted the

         21  process of Charter Reform.

         22                 By the Mayor's own admission in

         23  appointing a second Charter Revision Commission, he

         24  defended the process by stating, "This is politics,

         25  that's what I do."
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          2                 The current Commission completely

          3  lacks independence from the Mayor. This is not an

          4  independent commission but a group dominated by the

          5  Mayor's handpicked campaign supporters and former

          6  Administration officials.

          7                 Because this year's off-year election

          8  involves only a few scattered city races, voter

          9  turnout should be about a third of the turnout in a

         10  regular election year, and, therefore, this is a

         11  particularly poor year in which to undertake any

         12  serious or meaningful Charter reform, since we are

         13  going to be talking about just a tiny, tiny

         14  percentage of the voting public will be voting on

         15  it, and since fewer of those will be actually

         16  informed on it as a result of the Commission's lack

         17  of attention to public hearings, it is a totally

         18  meaningless mandate that will be given to these

         19  issues.

         20                 In fact, the Commission's public

         21  hearing process thwarted public participation. The

         22  Commission held six public hearings, one in each

         23  borough, except for Brooklyn, which had two at the

         24  same location. All but one public hearing was

         25  clustered during a one-week period in August.
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          2                 And presenting a patchwork of 14

          3  legislative proposals as a single ballot question

          4  does an enormous disservice to the voters and the

          5  voting public. A voter who is in favor of some of

          6  the proposals but has objections with others is put

          7  in the position whereby they must choose which are

          8  more important.

          9                 Based upon these findings, the Select

         10  Committee makes the following recommendations,

         11  tentatively:

         12                 That the provisions of the State's

         13  Municipal Home Rule Law relating to Charter revision

         14  should be amended to prevent Mayors from using

         15  Charter Revision Commissions to upset the system of

         16  checks and balances and to circumvent the normal

         17  legislative process.

         18                 Now, let me just say that this is a

         19  very serious matter that we are considering here in

         20  this City, and it seems to me that there are really

         21  two efforts that this Charter Revision Commission is

         22  undertaking.

         23                 The first is, having thrown aside the

         24  effort to throw aside Mr. Green, our Public Advocate

         25  Green from the line of succession, the Mayor
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          2  converted this Commission into a power grab.

          3                 It is very clear that with regard to

          4  the budgetary powers, every single one of these is

          5  gauged towards removing some of the Council's

          6  balancing role which the Mayor obviously resented as

          7  a result of the Council passing its own budget in

          8  the past, and which aren't actually intended, and we

          9  are going to have some testimony to that effect from

         10  I know the Independent Budget Office, et cetera, but

         11  which actually would not have the effect of

         12  increasing budgetary discipline, but would only have

         13  the effect of reducing the Council's role as a

         14  balance.

         15                 But the second, and equally

         16  important, effort of the Charter Revision

         17  Commission, is to totally undermine a legislative

         18  process in general, and this is I think a less

         19  understood, but in a certain sense more invidious

         20  problem.

         21                 The Mayor has decided that if he

         22  doesn't like the pace of certain legislative

         23  proposals through the City's elected legislature and

         24  their elected representatives, that he is just going

         25  to create a couple of his cronies, puts them in a
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          2  room together and they report out a proposal which

          3  is a grab bag of his legislative agenda hidden

          4  behind a couple of mom and apple pie proposals. For

          5  this Mayor's Commission to headline its efforts by

          6  saying that it is about the gun-free school zones

          7  and trigger locks is so misleading, you know, it is

          8  absolutely absurd. There aren't words to describe

          9  how misleading that proposal is, and, yet, voters,

         10  when they go in, are not going to generally know

         11  what it is that they are voting on. They are not

         12  going to know that, for example, the merger of the

         13  Department of Health and the Department of Mental

         14  Health comprise of 17 pages of legislative language

         15  in the Mayor's Commission's ballot proposal, but on

         16  the actual ballot what they are voting on are 14

         17  words that just generally describe it. That is

         18  absurd. It is hidden at the bottom of a grab bag of

         19  proposals which are headlined by the school gun-free

         20  zones. I mean, that is absurd.

         21                 I think that the fact that it is so

         22  misleading is very, very disappointing to us because

         23  I think all of us in elective government recognize

         24  that the people of the City have a right to have a

         25  say on certain important issues, particularly ones
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          2  as important as the balance of power, or are

          3  important in terms of the budgetary authority, et

          4  cetera.

          5                 But the fact that it is so misleading

          6  makes it even more disappointing that we have not

          7  been joined today by the Mayor's Commission. This

          8  Commission has now, if we look at it seriously, they

          9  propose and extraordinary misleading ballot proposal

         10  that groups together issues that have nothing to do

         11  with one another and when given an opportunity in

         12  this forum to come before this Council, the elected

         13  legislature of this City, and to talk with the

         14  people of this City through that body and through

         15  the opportunity to exchange issues and debate on

         16  this subject, what has the Commission done? The

         17  Commission is utterly silent. We have in front of us

         18  here three empty chairs, and unfortunately, I

         19  believe what we really have is an empty leadership

         20  on the part of this Commission.

         21                 Now, they say they are going to send

         22  out a guide that explains the issues to the voters

         23  in their fashion, what we want is an honest exchange

         24  of ideas, an honest debate, and we apparently can't

         25  get that kind of an honest debate from this
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          2  Commission.

          3                 This Commission held its hearings

          4  during the summer, with very little notice, in

          5  extremely inaccessible places, and some would say,

          6  of course, that City Hall is inaccessible, although

          7  I don't think we could blame the members of this

          8  Committee for that, but this Commission held a

          9  couple of hearings, they invited New Yorkers to come

         10  and have the opportunity to testify before, it then

         11  essentially insulted most of the voters by ignoring

         12  all of the recommendations for the most part that

         13  were given to it, and now it has once again insulted

         14  the voters by refusing to come and actually have a

         15  debate and actually have a discussion on the merits

         16  of this proposal.

         17                 So, I would say that I am

         18  disappointed, but I am not surprised. And the reason

         19  that I am not surprised is because the fact of the

         20  matter is that this Commission doesn't want the

         21  voters to know what is in this initiative, this

         22  Commission doesn't want there to be a meaningful

         23  public debate on this subject, because what it wants

         24  to do is to utterly mislead the voters as to what

         25  they are voting on and to get it passed by that
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          2  fashion, and there is no more obvious example than

          3  this ridiculous grouping together of 14 utterly

          4  separate proposals into one and leading off with a

          5  school gun-free zone proposal, which if the Mayor

          6  had ever even thought of to propose it to the

          7  legislature would have sailed through. I mean it is

          8  not as if we are a bunch of NRA gun nuts here in the

          9  City Council.

         10                 So, I am disappointed. I am not

         11  surprised. We are now looking forward to having some

         12  testimony from some elected officials and the

         13  Independent Budget Office and other groups, but

         14  before we do, I wanted to offer to my colleagues, if

         15  they would like to make a brief comment to begin

         16  with, that opportunity.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 Council Member Carrion.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  I am sorry,

         21  before you begin, I want to say we have been joined

         22  by Councilman Sabini, also a member of the

         23  Committee.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,
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          2  Chairman Miller. I just want to make a very, very

          3  brief comment.

          4                 It is very unfortunate that we are

          5  once again, in such a short period of time, sitting

          6  here going through this exercise in response to the

          7  cynicism that is coming from the Executive of this

          8  City.

          9                 As you stated, we have a legislative

         10  branch and we have a deliberative democratic process

         11  by which we arrive at laws that dictate the way we

         12  do business in this City, and the New Yorkers need

         13  to know that this is cynical, that this flies in the

         14  face of democracy, that this is once again a farce,

         15  and I would hope that we can, between now and

         16  November 2nd, get a message out there that you

         17  cannot fool all of the people all of the time and I

         18  think that is the attitude that we are getting from

         19  the Chief Executive of this town.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Councilman

         22  Sabini.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman.

         25                 I would echo some of the sentiments
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          2  that you raised and my colleague Council Member

          3  Carrion raised, New Yorkers have to be made aware

          4  that the City Charter is the equivalent to the

          5  constitution of this City. It is supposed to set up

          6  framework of government, not be the government. And

          7  past Charter Commissions took months, in some cases

          8  years to deliberate with dozens of hearings on broad

          9  framework of government topics, and last year's

         10  Commission was created admittedly by the

         11  Administration to keep the Yankee Stadium referendum

         12  off the ballot. And this year's commission held

         13  hearings that at some point were inaccessible,

         14  people had to wait in Queens upwards of 40 minutes

         15  to get in, and yet, threw in all kinds of sweeteners

         16  in order to obscure the fact that they were changing

         17  and were de -- or undemocratizing government, but by

         18  throwing in sweeteners that have nothing to do with

         19  the framework of government, that are nice things

         20  but have no place in the City Charter, they are

         21  again perpetuating a shell game on the voters of

         22  this City.

         23                 We have nothing against keeping guns

         24  out of schools, but that is done legislatively, that

         25  is not done in a City Charter. And if it was to be
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          2  done in a City Charter, then the question should

          3  have been separately.

          4                 Now, there are some in the

          5  administration that are saying that we are opposed

          6  to this because of our desire to protect our own

          7  power.

          8                 I think, frankly, that again is a

          9  specious argument. Had these questions been

         10  separated, or had other questions been raised -- at

         11  the Queens hearing I raised the fact that I thought

         12  we should change the way the Council and elected

         13  officials increased their own salaries, which some

         14  would argue was not in our favor.

         15                 I also believe, and I said at the

         16  Queens hearing, that what about to put a question on

         17  the ballot about compensation to Council members and

         18  how, whether or not we would be full time. They

         19  ignored having those questions on the ballot, which

         20  would have been good government questions, and we

         21  could have had a spirited debate on it, even

         22  institutionally, because I believe institutionally

         23  we would have had spirited debate on that.

         24                 But, no, those weren't offered to the

         25  voters because that would have in some ways changed
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          2  and reformed how government worked. Instead what was

          3  offered to the voters was a recentralization of City

          4  government, a basic overturning of the 1989 Charter

          5  Revision that has worked frankly so well to

          6  everyone's shock and surprise that was against it,

          7  and offered the voters an opportunity to not really

          8  understand that they are voting to take away their

          9  own power by silencing their own representatives,

         10  and by cloaking that in a public safety issue, such

         11  as the way they have done it is really a shell game

         12  of -- it is not worthy of this administration

         13  frankly, and to tinker with the City's constitution

         14  in this manner is wrong-headed and quite surprising

         15  really for people that I believed were in many

         16  instances, if we disagree with them at least they

         17  are interested in good government.

         18                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         19  make a good statement.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

         21  Councilman.

         22                 Councilman Perkins.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thanks to the

         24  eloquence of the chair and my colleagues Sabini and

         25  Carrion, there is not much left that I really need
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          2  to add.

          3                 Let me just say to the public outside

          4  of this room that is watching this program on

          5  Crosswalks or hopefully New York 1, that on November

          6  2nd, vote no on proposition number two. If I could

          7  give these proposals a title, I would call them bait

          8  and switch or rope a dope. Because basically this is

          9  what the Administration is doing in the manner in

         10  which these proposals were developed as outlined by

         11  the Chair in the manner in which the ballot is being

         12  presented, and again was pointed out by the chair,

         13  the confusion that the Administration is depending

         14  upon clearly represents the cynicism of bait and

         15  switch and rope a dope, and so rather than be

         16  long-winded, I would just like once again to say to

         17  the Crosswalks audience and to the New York 1

         18  audience, those two most intelligent audiences, that

         19  on November 2nd you are going to be asked to make a

         20  very, very important decision about this City, don't

         21  be a dope and don't get caught in the bait and

         22  switch. Vote no on Proposal Number 2.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

         25  Councilman.
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          2                 Let met just, before we call the

          3  first number of witnesses, I want to just add that

          4  there really are substantive questions that we had

          5  hoped the Charter Revision Commission would come

          6  forward to be able to answer.

          7                 I mean, what I would really like to

          8  ask, and unfortunately, I am left asking this empty

          9  chair, is what possible rationale could there be, I

         10  would love to hear a rationale for why it is that 14

         11  proposals on as disparate things on the

         12  Administration for Children's Services, immigration

         13  issues, contracting, school violence and budgetary

         14  authority, what possible reason could there be for

         15  linking this?

         16                 And I think that actually this is as

         17  good an answer as the Commission could possible

         18  give, because there is no answer. And really the

         19  fact of the matter is, were the Commission to come

         20  here and testify before us, there would be nothing

         21  that they could say. They could say something like,

         22  well, we are trying to consolidate the efforts of

         23  this, that or the other thing, but it would really

         24  be as empty as the silence that we are hearing

         25  today.
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          2                 I would like to know how much this is

          3  costing the people of the City of New York. There

          4  were dozens of staff members from City agencies that

          5  were loaned to this Commission. They are apparently

          6  going to make a mailing on behalf of this

          7  Commission. There is a huge amount of money that was

          8  spent on this effort. We have to do mailings, as

          9  well as the Campaign Finance Board; how much money

         10  was spent on this? How much of the people's money

         11  are we wasting here? I think that is something that

         12  the Commission is responsible for answering.

         13                 Once again, I think their preferred

         14  response is obviously silence, and I am not

         15  surprised. Who can blame them? When you have a

         16  product as poor as they do, the best thing to do is

         17  to be silent and hope the people are misled when

         18  they get in that ballot box, because that is their

         19  real hope, that is their agenda. What they want is

         20  for people to have no idea what is happening, and

         21  when they get into that ballot and they pull back

         22  the curtain, they see this thing down there in the

         23  bottom and they look at it and they say, gun-free

         24  zones? I am surprised I haven't heard anything about

         25  that, but I am for that. I am for gun-free zones,
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          2  who wouldn't be for gun free zones.

          3                 What self-respecting voter would go

          4  into a ballot box and walk out saying, you know, I

          5  feel good because I just voted against gun-free

          6  zones around the schools? No one. No one would do

          7  that. And that is why there is this silence, because

          8  it is part and parcel of their agenda. They want

          9  other silence on this subject, and it is the same

         10  thing they did last year.

         11                 Last year we had this hearing, the

         12  Commission didn't show up. Why didn't they show up?

         13  Because they didn't want people to know what the

         14  facts were, they wanted to confuse them when they

         15  got in the ballot box, and I as a voter deeply,

         16  deeply resent it.

         17                 We are going to start with our

         18  witnesses. We have also been joined by Council

         19  Member Rodriguez, who is also a member of the

         20  Committee. Thank you for coming.

         21                 We have a representative, Howard

         22  Golden, the Brooklyn Borough President, first. If

         23  you would just identify yourself for the record, and

         24  then have at it.

         25                 MS. GADSON: Good morning, Mr.
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          2  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is

          3  Jeannette Gadson, I am the Deputy Borough President

          4  of Brooklyn. I am here this morning to represent the

          5  Borough President Howard Golden representing the

          6  Borough of Brooklyn.

          7                 The New York City Charter is the

          8  basic document for New York City's government.

          9  Revisions to this document, therefore, must be

         10  carefully considered as they may dramatically alter

         11  the balance of powers in City government.

         12                 The ten years that the Borough

         13  President worked with the latest Charter revision

         14  led him to suggest changes to the 1999 Charter

         15  Revision Commission in the areas of procurement,

         16  land use review, budget and access to information.

         17                 Although these recommendations were

         18  furnished to the Commission in early July, I find

         19  that none were incorporated into the Commission's

         20  final proposal. Although, I believe that these

         21  recommendations are meaningful and worthy of your

         22  consideration, they are detailed in the Borough

         23  President's statement which was distributed to you

         24  and will be included in the record, so I won't go

         25  over them verbatim.
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          2                 I will, however, now turn to the

          3  proposals which were finally adopted by the

          4  Commission.

          5                 The Commission's budget proposals

          6  include, among others, the imposition of a spending

          7  gap tied to the inflation rate on year-to-year

          8  increases in City funded spending.

          9                 One of the budget proposals would

         10  place 50 percent of any budget surplus into a budget

         11  stabilization fund to be used to prepay debt service

         12  or to be used for an emergency.

         13                 Another proposal would require a

         14  two-thirds vote of the Council to impose a new tax

         15  or increase in existing tax and require a

         16  four-fifths vote of the Council to override a

         17  Mayoral veto.

         18                 This proposals give the Mayor a

         19  significant power to determine City-funded budget

         20  increases or initiatives. This is a power which is

         21  traditionally shared by the executive and the

         22  legislative branches which enable government to

         23  maintain a balance of powers.

         24                 These proposals would limit the

         25  budgetary decision-making powers of City government,
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          2  exercise by the legislative branch, and undermine

          3  the balancing of interest, as well as the democratic

          4  and open nature of the process itself.

          5                 The Commission's procurement

          6  proposals include a proposal centralizing the vendor

          7  integrity review. Under the Mayor, in allowing him

          8  to determine whether a potential vendor should be

          9  considered responsible.

         10                 While it seems laudable to allow the

         11  Mayor to deny corrupt businesses access to City

         12  contracts by eliminating the inflexible debarment

         13  provision, the Commission's proposal under the

         14  rubric silently denies a prospective vendor due

         15  process. It does not provide for an evidentiary

         16  hearing process before a prospective vendor is

         17  stripped of its economic livelihood under this

         18  so-called streamlined, centralized integrity review.

         19                 Without a hearing a prospective

         20  vendor would have to report to the courts to contest

         21  the Mayor's action. The courts traditionally are

         22  loathe to substitute their discretion for the

         23  Mayor's, unless he was clearly arbitrary and

         24  capricious, a difficult legal standard to meet.

         25                 Accordingly, under this proposal a
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          2  prospective vendor could be denied the opportunity

          3  to submit a bid or to be awarded a City contract,

          4  because of unproven or unsubstantiated allegations

          5  of corrupt relationships or practices without a full

          6  evidentiary hearing. This would allow a Mayor by

          7  innuendo to destroy a business or to direct the

          8  City's business to a friendly vendor.

          9                 I believe the adoption of my

         10  recommendations would have made this City Charter a

         11  more viable document for the next century by

         12  providing communities and elected officials a

         13  greater opportunity for meaningful input into our

         14  procurement, land use review and budgeting

         15  processes.

         16                 An important opportunity to make our

         17  city government more transparent and responsive was

         18  thus lost.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

         20  much. We appreciate the Borough President's

         21  perspective.

         22                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         23  questions?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member
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          2  Perkins.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you for

          4  your testimony and the time and the commitment that

          5  I know your office and yourself have made towards

          6  good government and towards appreciating the value

          7  of good process.

          8                 If you had to advise the voters of

          9  Brooklyn on November 2nd as to who they should vote

         10  on what I call the rope a dope bait and switch

         11  proposals presented by the Mayor, would you advise

         12  them to vote now on proposition two?

         13                 MS. GADSON: Let me first say,

         14  Councilman, that the Borough President will be

         15  expressing his views on just that issue,

         16  specifically an op ed piece that will be coming out

         17  within the next couple of days. But I can tell you

         18  with all certainty as I listen to the Council

         19  Members and to the chair in particular, our views

         20  are indeed similar and we feel the same as you do in

         21  terms of the fact that this is a City where

         22  government responsibilities ought to be shared with

         23  the Executive and the Legislative Branch and the

         24  people that it serves. And until that happens, what

         25  is before us right now does not meet that particular
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          2  need.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I look

          4  forward to the Borough President's op ed piece, and

          5  I look forward to the wonderful turn-out in Brooklyn

          6  on November 2nd when I am sure the voters will do

          7  the right thing and vote no on proposition two.

          8                 MS. GADSON: Thank you very much,

          9  Councilman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Any other

         11  questions?

         12                 Thank you very much for your

         13  testimony.

         14                 Next we have Tchiyaka Cornelius, of

         15  the Borough President of Manhattan's Office.

         16                 If you could identify yourself for

         17  the record and then have at it.

         18                 MR. CORNELIUS: Good morning. My name

         19  is Tchiyaka Cornelius, I am Director of

         20  Intergovernmental Relations for the Manhattan

         21  Borough President C. Virginia Fields, who wished she

         22  could be here herself, but unfortunately has a

         23  conflicting schedule. I will give her short

         24  testimony.

         25                 Mr. Chairman and members of the
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          2  Committee, I am urging all New Yorkers to vote no on

          3  Charter Revision this Election Day, November 2nd.

          4  There are many reasons to oppose this Charter

          5  referendum, but the most important and fundamental

          6  is that the Charter revision process has represented

          7  an assault on the institutional checks and balances

          8  of City government and especially an assault on the

          9  powers of the City Council. Both by law and by

         10  political tradition, New York City has a strong

         11  Mayor. That makes the most important safeguard

         12  against the abuse of Mayoral power in our city, the

         13  counterbalancing power of the legislative branch,

         14  the City Council.

         15                 Since the last major Charter revision

         16  in '89, this City Council has become an increasingly

         17  capable representative and respected. The Council

         18  has truly come of age as a legislative body, it has

         19  shown an ability to cooperate with the Mayor

         20  effectively when it is possible, and also challenge

         21  the Mayor effectively when it is necessary.

         22                 In both process and substance, the

         23  work of the Charter Revision Commission undermines

         24  this Council's rightful independent power.

         25                 The excellent staff report of this
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          2  Committee clearly describes the nature of this

          3  assault on the Council's authority and on the very

          4  process of legislative deliberation and action.

          5                 This proposed Charter referendum, for

          6  example, unwisely tampers with the budget approval

          7  process, the most fundamental power of this or any

          8  other legislative body.

          9                 As the staff report notes, experience

         10  over the last decade shows that a structure of

         11  checks and balances among the branches of government

         12  has proven more effective in promoting fiscal

         13  responsibility than the government-by-formula

         14  approach advocated by the Charter Revision

         15  Commission.

         16                 Similarly, the Charter Commission's

         17  various proposals to consolidate City agencies are

         18  to codify their authorities, may have some merit.

         19                 But these are matters best left to

         20  the deliberation, debate, amendment, public input

         21  and public scrutiny that are all essential parts of

         22  the legislative process.

         23                 The Charter Commission's proposed

         24  amendment on firearms trigger locks is another

         25  example of misappropriated authority.
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          2                 Last week, this Council approved a

          3  very well-drafted well-considered gun safety local

          4  law in open session, after the Committee hearings,

          5  by public vote of duly elected legislators.

          6                 To paraphrase an old slogan of the

          7  New York Mets, that is government "the way it ought

          8  to be."

          9                 And the Charter Commission, with its

         10  grab bag agenda, unrepresentative, mayorally

         11  appointed composition, and rushed and poorly

         12  attended schedule of public hearings, is government

         13  the way it ought to be.

         14                 Members of the Committee, I am very

         15  proud of the fact that I served as a member of this

         16  Council for two terms. It was an experience that

         17  taught me the indispensable value of an independent

         18  and empowered council.

         19                 And because of the importance of

         20  maintaining an independent and empowered council, I

         21  believe that the voters of New York City will reject

         22  the Charter referendum this Election Day.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

         25  much for your testimony.
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          2                 Any questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

          5  Perkins.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          7  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 This is a rope a dope bait and switch

          9  Charter reform proposals being presented by the

         10  Executive Branch. I want to thank my colleague

         11  Carrion for the very concise word of cynicism that

         12  he uses when he describes it.

         13                 You know, we are urging that folks --

         14  when I say we, I don't speak necessarily for anybody

         15  at the table, but I dare say vote no on these

         16  proposals, and we will be asking our constituents to

         17  make sure that they bring with them other voters to

         18  vote no because the cynicism of this is that the

         19  Executive is expecting a low turnout. They are

         20  expecting that the folks won't care and that

         21  therefore they won't come out to vote.

         22                 And as a result of that low turnout,

         23  probably lower than most school board elections, we

         24  know how low those can get, that this dramatic

         25  undemocratic change in the rules of governing New
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          2  York City will take place. And that power will be

          3  shifted over to the Executive Branch at the expense

          4  of the Legislative Branch, undermining the

          5  fundamental democratic principle that this City and

          6  all parts of this country should be run on.

          7                 So, as the Borough President, am I

          8  correct in hearing the Borough President urging the

          9  people to also vote no in Manhattan on November 2nd

         10  for these proposals?

         11                 MR. CORNELIUS: Absolutely. That is

         12  the first line of our testimony, urging all citizens

         13  to vote no on November 2nd.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

         16  much for your testimony.

         17                 MR. CORNELIUS: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Andrew Rein of

         19  the New York City Independent Budget Office.

         20                 MR. REIN: I am Andrew Rein, Associate

         21  Director of the New York City Independent Budget

         22  Office, and I appreciate the opportunity to testify

         23  here today.

         24                 We have analyzed the three changes

         25  proposed in the area of budget process and present
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          2  you our findings in our Inside The Budget News

          3  Facts, which you include in your report as Exhibit

          4  G, so I will briefly go over a new main points and

          5  answer, I will be happy to answer any questions you

          6  have.

          7                 Before addressing these changes,

          8  please allow me to say, however, that the

          9  Independent Budget Office odes not advocate a

         10  particular vote on the referendum. However, we

         11  present this analysis because the proposed changes

         12  could significantly affect the management of the

         13  city's finances and their impacts aren't necessarily

         14  apparent from the brief synopses that will appear on

         15  the ballot.

         16                 The first proposed change would limit

         17  city-funded spending increases in the executive and

         18  adopted budgets to the rate of inflation, as

         19  measured by increases in the regional consumer price

         20  index. This proposal is best understood by examining

         21  its likely impact on spending.

         22                 It should be understood that the cap

         23  would not force the City to keep spending growing

         24  below the rate of inflation. The Mayor and Council

         25  could easily override the cap.
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          2                 Also, the cap could be circumvented

          3  by creative accounting devices because the proposal

          4  does not control for the City's methods of rolling

          5  surpluses or include items moved "off budget".

          6                 For example, this year's budget would

          7  have fit under the cap, even though once those

          8  accounting devices are controlled for, city funded

          9  spending grows 7.4 percent or five times the rate of

         10  inflation.

         11                 Thus, the cap's real impact would be

         12  the result of the incentives it creates. On the one

         13  hand, it certainly would create an incentive to

         14  incentive for spending control because it would

         15  provide a benchmark for the press, for the public to

         16  judge spending that is proposed and adopted in the

         17  City.

         18                 On the other hand, it would provide

         19  an incentive to hide spending so that the growth

         20  would be less apparent.

         21                 What is interesting in this proposal,

         22  because it applies to the executive adopted budgets,

         23  is it will provide an incentive to increase spending

         24  in the budget modification rather than the time of

         25  adoption.
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          2                 Our analysis also considered the

          3  choice of the CPI as the benchmark for spending

          4  growth. The CPI is used as a proxy for the increase

          5  in the cost of items that make up city spending, so

          6  theoretically the City budget could maintain the

          7  same purchasing power year to year.

          8                 It is not therefore a measure of what

          9  the City can afford in a given year. If the

         10  objective were to tie spending to affordability, the

         11  cap would be a measure of economic growth or a

         12  balanced budget that would match revenues and

         13  expenditures.

         14                 In sum, the proposed spending cap may

         15  have little impact on spending growth and would

         16  provide an incentive to obscure the presentation of

         17  city expenditures.

         18                 The second proposed change would

         19  require the city to deposit at least 50 percent of

         20  "net surplus revenues" into a budget stabilization

         21  and emergency fund. It is crucial to understand this

         22  would not create a rainy day fund. A rainy day fund

         23  sets aside monies to address short-term emergencies,

         24  such as an economic downturn. In contrast, this

         25  mechanism would just use surpluses to support
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          2  spending in the following year, whether or not the

          3  economy is expanding or contracting.

          4                 In general, as your report notes,

          5  this proposal simply would codify something akin to

          6  the City's current practice. For the past 19 years,

          7  the City has used nearly 100 percent of any surplus

          8  to prepay future expenditures, primarily debt

          9  service.

         10                 This mechanism effectively rolls

         11  surplus funds into the subsequent year.

         12                 The proposal interestingly also

         13  appeared to create a new limit of ten percent of the

         14  portion of this fund that could be used for

         15  pay-as-you-go financing for capital projects. If

         16  this were true, it could reduce the City's ability

         17  to use surpluses in a manner that is prudent.

         18                 However, there is also a provision

         19  that allows funds to be transferred out of the

         20  budget stabilization and emergency fund which could

         21  effectively circumvent this limit.

         22                 In sum, although prudent use of

         23  budget surpluses is an important aspect of managing

         24  the City's finances, this proposal would do little

         25  to help the City fortify its long-term fiscal
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          2  condition.

          3                 The third and final proposal in the

          4  area of budget process would require a two-thirds

          5  majority vote of the City Council to impose a new

          6  tax or increasing existing tax, and a four-fifths

          7  majority of the Council to override a mayoral veto.

          8  Of course, in the proposal it would not apply to the

          9  property tax.

         10                 When the City is facing fiscal

         11  difficulties, elected officials often are forced to

         12  choose between cutting spending and/or raising taxes

         13  to balance the budget.

         14                 This proposal would move the bias

         15  toward spending cuts and property tax increases.

         16                 There has been much said about the

         17  balance of powers in this proposal and one of the

         18  things we looked at a little differently that many

         19  people have is that the Council is not necessarily

         20  all one body, there are majorities, minorities and

         21  any particular vote and this proposal would empower

         22  a small minority of the Council, just 11 members, to

         23  block the override of the Mayoral veto.

         24                 That finishes my comments, I would be

         25  happy to answer any questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes, let me just

          3  see if I can understand.

          4                 So, basically what you are telling us

          5  is that you viewed the budgetary proposals, the

          6  three budgetary proposals as at best gimmicks and at

          7  worst potentially threatening fiscal responsibility

          8  for this City?

          9                 MR. REIN: I think in sum, if you take

         10  them as a whole, it is hard to characterize them in

         11  any particular fashion.

         12                 I think what we have tried to do here

         13  is explain what the impact would be.

         14                 For example, if, when if appears on

         15  the ballot, if one thinks, has the impression it

         16  would -- city spending could not increase above the

         17  rate of inflation, that would not be true.

         18                 What we tried to do here is explain

         19  what would be true, which would be an incentive to

         20  control spending but a countervailing incentive to

         21  hide pending growth. I think it is more subtle than

         22  any general characterization, we have tried to

         23  explain the proposals and what the real impact would

         24  be.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.
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          2                 Council Member Sabini.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Rein. As the Associate Director of the IBO, an

          5  appropriate question to ask you, since the police

          6  say it, it becomes political, as you correctly point

          7  out, the proposal requires whole new set of hurdles

          8  for increasing taxes, but it doesn't apply as a

          9  property tax.

         10                 Since property taxes are an

         11  extraordinarily large share of the City's revenue

         12  stream, cutting out property taxes, cutting out

         13  state aid, cutting out federal aid, cutting out any

         14  user fees, what percentage of the City's revenue

         15  budget would be affected by this grand tax cutting

         16  proposal that I am sure the Mayor will parade

         17  throughout upstate New York? What percentage of the

         18  City's revenue budget would this affect?

         19                 MR. REIN: I don't have the exact

         20  percentage, and because we focused on budget, I

         21  would like to get you the particular number later.

         22                 You are right it is not the --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Is it fair to

         24  say that probably a single digit of the City's

         25  revenue stream?
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          2                 MR. REIN: That is non-property taxes?

          3  No, it is fair to say it is larger than that. I

          4  believe, though, it is probably under 50 percent,

          5  but I will get back to you on that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Once you cut out

          7  state aid, federal aid --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: State aid,

          9  federal aid and user fees, I believe that the taxes

         10  that this question applies to are a very, very small

         11  amount of the City revenue budget, I would like to

         12  see the percentage of that.

         13                 MR. REIN: I will check into it. We

         14  should also remember --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Because it

         16  sounds a lot bigger than it is.

         17                 MR. REIN: Yes.

         18                 And one of the things, you know,

         19  personal income taxes have been growing as a portion

         20  of the revenue, so I will get back to you on the

         21  specific number this afternoon.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

         23                 And the PIT, it doesn't address state

         24  say-sos on PITs as well. I mean we just can't

         25  willy-nilly raise the state -- the City's personal

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHARTER REFORM

          2  income tax by the state approval.

          3                 MR. REIN: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And I would

          5  venture to guess that there would be litigation

          6  involved in that if we tried to modify what the

          7  State Constitution allows us to do or not to do.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Are there any

         10  other questions?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

         13  Rodriguez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: With regard

         15  to the four percent budget cap, I read somewhere

         16  that the Mayor is suggesting that he has

         17  traditionally stayed below that; is that accurate?

         18                 MR. REIN: I am sorry, could you

         19  repeat that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The four

         21  percent budget cap on year-to-year increases, the

         22  Mayor has suggested that he has stayed below that

         23  during his Administration; has that been every year,

         24  or has he deviated from that in any year?

         25                 MR. REIN: If you look at the budget
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          2  as presented and the final report of the Commission

          3  has a table, the budgets did in the last six years

          4  stay below that cap.

          5                 My point that I made, and let me

          6  reiterate it, if I may, which is that the way we

          7  roll surpluses distorts year-to-year spending. So,

          8  if you are really trying to control City spending,

          9  you need to deal with the way we roll surpluses

         10  between the years.

         11                 In other words, if you prepay $2

         12  billion of expenditures, the increases expenditures

         13  in the first year, decreases in the second year,

         14  suddenly the growth is well understated.

         15                 So, if you are really trying to

         16  control expenditures you need to control for that,

         17  and as I said, this year's budget, which is under

         18  the inflation cap of 1.4 percent, as constructed in

         19  this proposal, actually if you control for this

         20  year-to-year role and move off-budget items into the

         21  equation, it is a 7.4 percent increase.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, what I

         23  am hearing from you is that it is just playing with

         24  numbers, that depending on how you interpret the

         25  numbers, you can stay below the four percent, if you
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          2  choose to stay below the four percent, you just turn

          3  around and say we are using this method of

          4  calculating what our budget increase is, and if you

          5  want to say, somebody else wants to say it is over 4

          6  percent, they will say we are using this method to

          7  determine what our increase is, and how will that be

          8  determined for the purposes officially, how will

          9  that be officially determined? Is there any way --

         10                 Let me begin by saying that, that is

         11  my background, I am a CPA by profession, so I know

         12  about fudging the numbers, and I am wondering

         13  whether or not there is a possibility of codifying

         14  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Cook the books,

         16  right?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I have

         18  tried that. I will look that up.

         19                 I am trying to see if there is a way

         20  of us knowing or figuring out a formula by which the

         21  numbers can't be, to use the Chairman's terms,

         22  cooked?

         23                 MR. REIN: You are certainly right

         24  that our interpretation of reading it is that you

         25  could stay under the cap, which is tied to
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          2  inflation, and still in the long run increase the

          3  budget more than inflation because of this very

          4  point you are talking about.

          5                 The proposal, perhaps if you adjust

          6  it, if you defined what spending is in the Charter

          7  on rolling the surpluses, if you use some of those

          8  accounting rules and move them into the Charter,

          9  what is the world you include, moving off-budget

         10  items in, how you roll surpluses, including some

         11  accounting rules and codification of those in there,

         12  you could perhaps meet the goal of making it much

         13  more difficult to, as you said, cook the books, and

         14  have a more true representation of spending growth.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So,

         16  essentially whatever in this case, if it were today

         17  that it would happen, whatever the Mayor decided to

         18  do the numbers, what the number would be? Because

         19  you would take and move monies around in a certain

         20  way to allow (a) for it either to be below the four

         21  percent; or (b) if you wanted to say we have an

         22  emergency and we have to move it above, we will move

         23  money in a different place and it will be above four

         24  percent.

         25                 So, it all really becomes at the
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          2  discretion of the Mayor to decide where that money

          3  is going.

          4                 MR. REIN: I would say, characterize

          5  it maybe slightly differently, looking at the final

          6  report and how they used the numbers, which is

          7  basically how the City represents its expenditures

          8  every year.

          9                 It is not how the Mayor or the

         10  Council, it is really what they use for numbers, the

         11  City generally uses in presentation of expenditures.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, thank

         13  you. No more questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Councilman

         15  Perkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I know that

         17  you are not able to tell the people to vote no on

         18  these propositions, and I know that the Mayor has

         19  attacked your Independent Budget Office time and

         20  time again. In fact, is it true that he has been

         21  trying to get rid of you? Has there been efforts

         22  made by the Administration to get rid of the

         23  Independent Budget Office that you know of? Yes or

         24  no.

         25                 MR. REIN: In the Executive Budget
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          2  last year, in his Preliminary Executive Budget, my

          3  recollection is that he did not fund the agency, but

          4  that is not what happened.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It did not

          6  ultimately happen.

          7                 I recall some of us in the City

          8  Council supported your efforts to stand and continue

          9  to do what you are doing so well; am I correct in

         10  that regard?

         11                 MR. REIN: Yes, the City Council has

         12  been very supportive.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Has been very

         14  supportive. And did the Mayor in any trial proposals

         15  try to get rid of the Independent Budget Office,

         16  that you are familiar with?

         17                 MR. REIN: Since the Mayor made no

         18  specific proposals, I can't speak to that. In his

         19  original list of questions for the staff to look at,

         20  the Chairman of the Commission, Randy Mastro, said

         21  that the staff should consider whether the IBO

         22  should be --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So they were

         24  considering getting rid of the IBO.

         25                 MR. REIN: And the staff came back
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          2  with a proposal that that should not be --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: They came

          4  back with that proposal after community protest and

          5  community outrage.

          6                 MR. REIN: They did cite when they

          7  issued the report that they received a number of

          8  letters in support of the IBO.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I don't want

         10  to compromise your non-partisan independent status,

         11  forgive me if I am putting words in your mouth or

         12  characterizing your relationship with this hostile

         13  administration as it relates to you in a way that

         14  may not be  quite accurate, because I know that you

         15  don't want to do anything that suggests any

         16  animosity towards the administration, even though

         17  they have done everything to let you know that,

         18  okay?

         19                 I just want to be clear because it is

         20  very important that you are around.

         21                 Now, with regard to these proposals

         22  that the Administration has put on the ballot, I

         23  know that you can't say to the public vote no

         24  against them, but let me ask you a question: From

         25  your perspective, do they shift influence from the
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          2  legislative to the executive? I don't want you to

          3  violate your status in terms of -- but I just want

          4  an honest answer.

          5                 MR. REIN: We -- I mean, frankly, we

          6  looked at the substance of the budget proposals in

          7  terms of their impact on spending, on using the

          8  surplus, and that was more of what we looked at.

          9                 On the tax, on the super majority

         10  proposal, as I said, we did look at that since many

         11  people had talked about the balance of power shift.

         12  We started thinking about it and realized there are

         13  different ways to look at the power of the Council,

         14  and it would certainly be harder for the majority of

         15  the Council to pass something because --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Oh, thank you

         17  very much. So, it makes it harder for the Council to

         18  do its job.

         19                 MR. REIN: But I am saying, let me

         20  clarify it if I mispoke, the majority of the Council

         21  would have --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I don't want

         23  you to be too clear, because one of the things I

         24  learned about people who do budget is that they get

         25  so clear that it gets foggy for me. So, I am really
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          2  talking to the folks out there that are looking at

          3  Crosswalks so that they can get clear as to where

          4  the shifts are taking place; do you understand what

          5  I am saying?

          6                 The Charter represents shift, one way

          7  or the other way, increase or decrease.

          8                 Now, from the perspective of a budget

          9  analyst, not judging whether that shift is good or

         10  bad or whether the public should support that shift

         11  or not, but just seeing where the marbles are

         12  moving, are they moving towards the legislative

         13  branch, are they being scooped up by the Executive

         14  Branch? Which way? Left, legislative; right,

         15  executive?

         16                 MR. REIN: Our conclusion after

         17  looking at it was that it was not clear in our

         18  minds, and so we focused on the minority of the

         19  Council that would have a new power, a small

         20  minority, to block the override of the mayoral veto.

         21  We did not conclude things as a body, we did not say

         22  that there would be a line shift between the

         23  executive and the legislative.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         25                 But you have heard that there was
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          2  such a line shift?

          3                 MR. REIN: I have heard it discussed,

          4  and people advocate on both sides of it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me just

          6  ask you one final question. You have heard that it

          7  increases the power of the Council?

          8                 MR. REIN: What Commissioner Mastro,

          9  as you have read in the report, has argued, is that

         10  it makes it harder for the executive to do its job

         11  by imposing that super majority. So, I am just

         12  saying there have been arguments on both sides.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, thank

         14  you very much for that clarification.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: And my

         16  colleague, Councilman Rodriguez, wanted to bring to

         17  the point that even in the Commission's rather

         18  self-congratulatory document with regard to the

         19  reduction in the rate of growth in recent years, in

         20  1997, which also happened to have been an election

         21  year, the City growth -- the City's budget growth

         22  rate was 7.7 percent. So, it is not as if -- you

         23  know, people can take that as they will.

         24                 Council Member Carrion. And we have

         25  been joined by Council Member DiBrienza. We are
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          2  going to ask you to try and keep your questions a

          3  little bit on the short side because some of us have

          4  overindulged and I apologize for that. I include

          5  myself certainly in that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman.

          8                 I want to go specifically to the use

          9  of the CPI. Without dealing with the merits of any

         10  of this, and whether or not we even need -- well, I

         11  guess a follow-up would be to examine whether or not

         12  we need a spending cap, is it a necessary tool that

         13  we should apply?

         14                 But you mentioned that it might be

         15  irrelevant, that there may not be a good

         16  relationship between the CPI and the budget and that

         17  it creates incentives to hide spending.

         18                 If you could, for the record and for

         19  our edification, and those people who are listening

         20  and watching, explain your position on the use of

         21  the CPI and whether or not we actually need a cap,

         22  and if not the consumer price index, then what?

         23                 MR. REIN: We did not examine whether

         24  we would need a cap so we didn't address that issue,

         25  so allow me to move on to your other questions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay.

          3                 MR. REIN: The CPI represents an

          4  attempt to keep City spending constant, so you can

          5  buy the same stuff every year. An alternative could

          6  be what can the City afford every year, which may be

          7  very different if the City's economy is expanding as

          8  it has the last few years.

          9                 If you wanted to keep the City's

         10  purchasing power equal every year, the CPI, were

         11  there other measures, could be a proxy and that is

         12  what is in this proposal.

         13                 If you wanted to say what could the

         14  City afford, you would -- if that were the

         15  intention, you would want to tie it to a measure of

         16  economic growth, or you would want to put into the

         17  Charter what is now in state law, a balanced budget

         18  requirement so that revenues, revenue growth would

         19  equal spending growth.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         22                 So, basically what you are pointing

         23  out is that, for example, if we have a great number

         24  of more revenues, but inflation is low, as it has

         25  been in recent years, you might, for example, want
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          2  to spend a lot more money on pay-as-you-go capital

          3  financing, which would be responsible, would reduce

          4  the long-term expenditures in the City and yet in

          5  that one year you would exceed inflation rate

          6  spending because inflation had been low and that

          7  would be good, but from a fiscal responsibility

          8  point of view but bad from a point of view if you

          9  are just looking at the consumer price index, right?

         10                 MR. REIN: It would certainly be over

         11  the CPI but of course as I was --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Fiscally

         13  responsible.

         14                 MR. REIN: You could certainly --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

         16  DiBrienza.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         18  Mr. Chairman, as you may know, I am co-chairing a

         19  three-way joint committee outside, so I just came to

         20  make a brief comment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We thank you for

         22  your interest.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I

         24  apologize.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: No, don't
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          2  apologize.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Well, for

          4  the leaving.

          5                 I want to first commend you, of

          6  course, trying to add this critically important

          7  issue and cutting right to my own personal bottom

          8  line, this Commission was a sham and a scam, it is a

          9  power grab by the Mayor. All of the proposals that

         10  flow from it lack legitimacy, because of that. And

         11  if there are, you know, any clear thinking and every

         12  clear thinking citizen of this City should

         13  understand that, individuals, communities and the

         14  Council will lose power, there is no question about

         15  it. This particular witness who tries to be as

         16  neutral as possible, given the mandate of the IBO,

         17  is struggling to answer questions because it is an

         18  indefensible power grab by the Mayor and it is the

         19  product of a sham and scam commission.

         20                 So, between now and Election Day, if

         21  individuals, communities and Council Members work as

         22  hard as they can, then hopefully this goes down to

         23  defeat.

         24                 Now I know that is not what you are

         25  here for, you are here to air and educate the
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          2  public, but I am here with a point of view to tell

          3  you, and to tell those who listen to these hearings,

          4  that is what is going on, and if they look at it and

          5  read it and if they know anything about the fact

          6  that it was a Commission of partisans thrown

          7  together at the last minute, five hearings in

          8  August, the month that most people are either away

          9  or want to be away, came up with 14 proposals,

         10  undemocratically rolled them into one, all of the

         11  things I am sure you covered. There is not even a

         12  gray area here, because the two or three seemingly

         13  innocuous provisions that sound good, they are sugar

         14  coated, you know? Remember when you were a kid you

         15  had to take medicine you put some sugar in it, can

         16  easily be accomplished by the democratic action,

         17  small d, of this Council. But the Mayor doesn't play

         18  well with others, so he doesn't seek to

         19  democratically, small d, accomplish things, he seeks

         20  to impose his will.

         21                 So, I thank you for the time you

         22  spend on this important issue.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         24  DiBrienza. I agree with everything you said, except

         25  that I will just point out that I think the medicine
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          2  in this case is more of a poison pill.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Rein.

          5                 The next testimony is on behalf of

          6  the Bronx Borough President Freddie Ferrer, Corey

          7  Bearak.

          8                 Identify yourself and have at it.

          9                 MR. BEARAK: My name is Corey Bearak.

         10  I am the Legislative Counsel to the Bronx Borough

         11  President Fernando Ferrer, and I am going to read

         12  his testimony on his behalf.

         13                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         14  comment on a thoughtful staff report that examines

         15  City Hall's attempt to drop a mixed bag of Charter

         16  Revision proposals lumped into one take it or leave

         17  it package on the voters.

         18                 The Mayor's Charter Revision

         19  Commission rates a failing grade. The Commissioner

         20  failed by asking voters to adopt a mixed bag of

         21  proposals lumped in one take it or leave it package.

         22  The Commission followed a disingenuous practice in

         23  proposing changes to our City's constitution. The

         24  Commission pushed this grab bag of 14 trick or

         25  treats on the public without adequately analyzing
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          2  the potential pitfalls of its proposals in a harried

          3  attempt just to get something on the ballot.

          4                 In fact, many of the issues proposed

          5  can and should be addressed without resorting to

          6  Charter Revision.

          7                 The Borough President urges voters to

          8  reject this year's experiment in Charter Revision

          9  that simply failed the people it should have served.

         10                 New Yorkers question the immediate

         11  need for the changes proposed. Many issues proposed

         12  can and should be addressed without resorting to the

         13  Charter Revision. Clearly, acting irresponsibly, the

         14  Commission failed to address many issues begging for

         15  analysis in the formulation of even its

         16  non-controversial proposals.

         17                 The clear partisan motivation of this

         18  Commission prevented the measured and complete

         19  deliberation that all New Yorkers deserve on these

         20  issues.

         21                 This results in a faulty product with

         22  more holes than we have time to mend. The ultimate

         23  failure of the Commission to address many of the

         24  issues requiring analysis, even in the formulation

         25  of non-controversial proposals is irresponsible.
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          2                 Anything done by Charter must be

          3  undone by the Charter. This means changes by the

          4  Charter may, however unwittingly, impair

          5  improvements that would otherwise be possible by

          6  legislative or other means.

          7                 In fact, our current Charter already

          8  empowers the Mayor, the Council and sometimes the

          9  Mayor alone to make many of the reforms this

         10  Commission asserts we need.

         11                 Nonetheless, voters understand the

         12  Commission's partisan motivation. Voters understand

         13  how it prevented the measured and complete

         14  deliberation that all New Yorkers deserve of its

         15  lawmakers, and voters understand how this process

         16  resulted in a faulty product with more holes.

         17                 The delay in the effective date of

         18  the special election, rather than a delay in placing

         19  the entire package of underdeveloped proposals on

         20  the ballot, shows City Hall's preoccupation in

         21  avoiding embarrassment and criticism.

         22                 This is simply an effort to justify a

         23  commission formed by the Mayor with one real goal, a

         24  partisan agenda to hold down one particular public

         25  servant.
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          2                 The Commission has shown its

          3  political intent to use the Charter Revision to

          4  achieve parts of City Hall's legislative agenda,

          5  despite the clear opposition of the consumers served

          6  by the Department of Mental Health, Mental

          7  Retardation and Alcoholism Services. For example,

          8  the Giuliani Commission proposes merging the smaller

          9  agency into the Health Department, renamed as the

         10  Department of Public Health and Mental Hygiene

         11  Services.

         12                 In addition to the proposed special

         13  election for Mayor, clearly a partisan agenda, the

         14  budget proposals would diminish the power of the

         15  City Council. And then we just ask you to look at a

         16  number of issues that the Commission failed to

         17  consider that would make a difference and that would

         18  require a Charter Revision to achieve:

         19                 - Creating an Independent CCRB by

         20  base-lining its budget as a percent of the NYPD

         21  budget and establishing a mechanism to make the

         22  appointed CCRB members more reflective of the City

         23  and less controlled by the Administration.

         24                 - Making elected officials

         25  accountable, barring mayoral rate setting boards and
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          2  authorities from imposing budget allocations, unless

          3  the City Council grants such authority, as in the

          4  example of the Water Board setting rates after,

          5  rather than, as it does now, before, the City

          6  Council adopts the budget.

          7                 - Budgeting for the delivery of City

          8  services where appropriate by borough and community

          9  district.

         10                 - Maximizing community participation

         11  in the City approval of major concessions for

         12  private use of public space, particularly parklands.

         13                 - Shifting responsibility for

         14  preparation of the Mayor's Management Report to the

         15  Independent Budget Office and renaming the document,

         16  the independent Management Report.

         17                 - Empowering the City Council to

         18  require reporting by mayoral agencies and City

         19  agencies of essential data in the MMR.

         20                 - Empowering the City Council to

         21  review Board of Standards and Appeals dispositions,

         22  a power held by the Board of Estimate but not passed

         23  on by the 1989 Commission to the Council.

         24                 In the end, any Charter Revision must

         25  work to benefit and empower all New Yorkers,
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          2  contributing to a more livable City.

          3                 City Hall's effort at Charter

          4  Revision in 1998 and 1999 support a look at changing

          5  state law to require collaboration by the Mayor and

          6  the Council in the establishment of any future panel

          7  to weigh changes to our City's constitution.

          8                 And this is something I think that

          9  the report makes very clear.

         10                 This hastily convened Commission and

         11  its hastily considered mixed bag of proposals insult

         12  the very democratic principles upon which our, city,

         13  state and nation were built. Voters should reject

         14  this take it or leave it package.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         17                 Any questions?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, at the

         19  risk of putting you in an awkward position, first of

         20  all I want to commend the Borough President for the

         21  extraordinary leadership he has been providing

         22  lately, particularly around this matter and look

         23  forward to his leadership in the Bronx on November

         24  the 2nd where he will be urging people to vote no on

         25  these Charter proposals; am I correct?
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          2                 MR. BEARAK: You can be assured of

          3  that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do you know

          5  what his feeling would be, particularly with regard

          6  to the shift in power from the legislative branch,

          7  you know, the voice of the people, to the Executive?

          8                 MR. BEARAK: One thing that has bee

          9  consistent in our testimony, both at any of the

         10  stages of this current process has been a concern

         11  that there was a shift of power to the Executive

         12  Branch from the City Council.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

         14  you, again, for the people on Crosswalks, and on New

         15  York 1, what would the Borough President say in

         16  Spanish, or can you?

         17                 MR. BEARAK: You are putting me on the

         18  spot.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. What

         20  would he say, Carrion, if he could? Repeat that for

         21  them in Spanish, because I know there is a lot of

         22  Latino -- if necessary I will say it in Spanish.

         23                 MR. BEARAK: I think you can really

         24  use the last paragraph of our testimony, that we had

         25  a hastily convened commission and that it hastily
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          2  considered a mixed bag of proposals, and that

          3  insults the very democratic principles on which our

          4  city, state and nation were built. The voters should

          5  reject this take it or leave it package, I think

          6  that says it succinctly and makes the point.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Mr. Chairman,

          8  allow me to translate.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Please translate

         10  for us, Council Member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay. No is

         12  no.

         13                 MR. BEARAK: Very good.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: The Borough

         15  President probably would say (In Spanish.) That is

         16  probably what he would say.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right. That is

         18  the Borough President's view. Thank  you very much.

         19                 MR. BEARAK: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for

         21  your testimony.

         22                 Conn Nugent of the Citizens Union.

         23                 MR. NUGENT: Good morning, Mr. Chair,

         24  Council members. My name is Conn Nugent, I serve as

         25  the Executive Director of the Citizens Union, that
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          2  102 year old organization for the honest and

          3  efficient government of the City of New York. I am

          4  delighted to be here this morning.

          5                 You all have I hope a copy of my

          6  remarks this morning, as well as a copy, may I say

          7  the first copy, Mr. Chairman, of the 1999 Citizens

          8  Union Voters Directory. So I will cut to the chase

          9  with this in the interest of brevity, and say that

         10  our recommendation on this proposal from the Charter

         11  Revision Commission is forthright, vote no. And we

         12  are emphatic on that, have been emphatic on that as

         13  an organization both standing alone and in concert

         14  with other civic organizations in town.

         15                 I would merely like to underline this

         16  morning, Mr. Chairman, and Council members, how much

         17  we appreciate the diligence and intelligence that

         18  went into the report submitted by the Select

         19  Committee and how much we embrace the

         20  recommendations, but the only negative, if you will,

         21  that we would like to put forward this morning is

         22  that in taking to heart what is described as the

         23  salient recommendation, the salient finding of this

         24  Select Committee, that Charter revision not be

         25  politicized, that Charter revision not be
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          2  politicized and trivialized, that the City Council

          3  take within its purview the examination of the

          4  various means by which the City Charter has been

          5  changed or has been attempted to change over recent

          6  years, and in particular we believe that the City

          7  Charter should examine the appropriateness of its

          8  move last year to seek to use the Charter Revision

          9  process for a referendum on Yankee Stadium.

         10                 We criticized that move last year, we

         11  think frankly that in the light of the last two

         12  years that while the size of the sin was not nearly

         13  so great as that committed by the Mayorally

         14  appointed Charter Revision Commissions of the last

         15  two years, we do think it was bad policy, thought so

         16  and think so today.

         17                 So, we urge that as this Committee,

         18  or indeed the entire Council, takes on a thorough

         19  examination of what changes have to be made in state

         20  law and local law, regarding the revision of the

         21  City Charter, that it take a fairly cold eye view at

         22  the possibilities for trivialization, both from the

         23  Mayor, with which we have closely experienced this

         24  year, but also from the Council itself and urge you

         25  to have a session of self-examination on that point

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            65

          1  SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHARTER REFORM

          2  as well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Nugent, for that even-handed testimony.

          5                 Councilman Sabini.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Nugent.

          8                 Just let me first of all congratulate

          9  you on the Gotham Gazette, I think it has been very

         10  worthwhile, it is amazing what money can do.

         11                 MR. NUGENT: Isn't it though.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: But I think it

         13  has been very worthwhile and I think New Yorkers

         14  should try and access it on their computers.

         15                 As the keeper of sort of civic virtue

         16  for over 100 years, doesn't it bother Citizens Union

         17  that opportunities like this have real discourse on

         18  government reform, or sort of free the way on

         19  political debates that we have had in the last two

         20  years?

         21                 MR. NUGENT: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: For example,

         23  Speaker Vallone argued for a vice mayor concept, and

         24  that would have made the policy concerns that some

         25  on the Charter Commission echo that there should be
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          2  some policy continuity between the Mayor and his or

          3  her successor if tragedy strikes, and yet doesn't

          4  cause the new mayor, if such a tragedy were to

          5  strike, based on health or some other catastrophe,

          6  that the day after his or her first phone call isn't

          7  to a focus group or a pollster or a political

          8  consultant, but rather to get on with government.

          9  That debate never really took place anywhere, not in

         10  the public now, not in the realm of the Commission

         11  then, the discussion was rather limited. Virtually

         12  every issue that was put forward by people seemed to

         13  just sort of go by the Board.

         14                 In fact, my understanding is that

         15  most New Yorkers feel it is a good idea to have the

         16  successor to the mayoral elected with the Mayor, yet

         17  that was never really addressed. It was almost like

         18  by giving in on the timing of the efficacy, that the

         19  real issue sort of got obscured, that all right, we

         20  are giving in on this, don't ask us about the

         21  substance. And as your organization is sort of, as I

         22  say, the keeper of civic virtue, isn't that sort of

         23  tragic that we can't sort of undertake those

         24  debates?

         25                 MR. NUGENT: Well, I think that is a
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          2  well summarized view of it, Council Member Sabini.

          3                 One of the ironies of this summer's

          4  lamentable history is that it is a good idea, as you

          5  said, from a good government point of view, to exam

          6  the question of Mayoral succession. Who should

          7  succeed the Mayor, should the Mayor resign? Should

          8  there be a Vice Mayor? These are terrific political

          9  science 101 questions and they should be debated

         10  thoroughly and with wide application.

         11                 One of the reasons that this summer's

         12  short history was so lamentable, was that this

         13  general civic question was wrapped up in political

         14  ambition and short-term calculation, and then for

         15  reasons of short-term political calculation,

         16  apparently at least, was dropped. So, now we have in

         17  some ways the worst of both worlds - a truncated

         18  provision, which calls for a change in the

         19  succession procedures to take place in 2002, thereby

         20  to escape, at least in purpose, charges of

         21  partisanship, but this debate that you sought, that

         22  you mentioned, will not occur. The question of who

         23  should succeed, a Mayor, no matter when he or she

         24  serves, is set by the buy. So, we find it in some

         25  ways, the worst possible result is the result that
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          2  did come out of the Charter Revision Commission,

          3  which is to say a piecemeal recommendation,

          4  vis-a-vis the election of the person who succeeds

          5  the Mayor through a special election, but no

          6  discussion, no thought really, as to who that person

          7  should be and what are the processes by which he or

          8  she should be chosen. So you are right all the way.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Sadly, the

         10  testimony offered by Speaker Vallone and others that

         11  tried to address real issues never really came out.

         12  In fact, I don't recall anyone clamoring to the

         13  microphone at the hearings I either attended or

         14  watched that said what this Charter Revision really

         15  needs is a good gun-free school zone, I don't recall

         16  that being major testimony, I don't recall it being

         17  anybody's testimony.

         18                 MR. NUGENT: Well, it is a

         19  non-constitutional question, Council Member, that is

         20  the problem other people put their finger on.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: By clouding

         22  government structure and the framework that the City

         23  Charter sets up with these other issues, whether it

         24  be guns or stadia or whatever, we trivialize the

         25  whole process.
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          2                 MR. NUGENT: I believe so.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

          5  Perkins.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The

          7  non-constitutional questions are the fish, or the

          8  bait for getting voters to vote yes; would you say?

          9                 MR. NUGENT: Yes, sir.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Would you say

         11  that those non-constitutional questions are cynical?

         12                 MR. NUGENT: To say that they were

         13  cynical would be to ascribe motivation to which I am

         14  not privy. I will put it this way, they appear

         15  calculated.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Are they

         17  calculated sort of in the good way or the bad way?

         18                 MR. NUGENT: Well, I would say since

         19  Citizens Union stands for constitutionalism, we

         20  would say in a bad way because we think --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. That is

         22  why I want to know.

         23                 MR. NUGENT: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I am really

         25  taking advantage of Crosswalks and New York 1 to
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          2  educate the public in a way that the Executive

          3  Branch refuses to do, and when you have witnesses of

          4  your caliber who are honest and sincere and balanced

          5  and who have years and years of involvement in good

          6  government and independence, it is important for

          7  them to hear from you in language and simplicity

          8  that will motivate them to vote no, if that is

          9  appropriate. Do you understand?

         10                 MR. NUGENT:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: See, we can

         12  have the governmental conversation in the language

         13  that we can be familiar with, but it is really kind

         14  of obscure to the average person. So that is why I

         15  would like you to talk to my grandmother or those

         16  types of folks so that they understand what is being

         17  imposed on them by this executive administration and

         18  do it in the balanced way that you have done so far.

         19                 MR. NUGENT: Well, I would say to your

         20  grandmother, if I may, Council Member, I would say

         21  Mrs. Perkins, this is one big mixed bag, but the

         22  things that are good are things that could be

         23  accomplished and should be accomplished with --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: She doesn't

         25  like real long sentences.
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          2                 MR. NUGENT: All right.

          3                 By working with your grandson and

          4  with the others on the Council. And the things that

          5  are bad are really pretty bad and they bear a lot

          6  more thought.

          7                 I vote no on this, Grandmother

          8  Perkins, and do so without any doubt.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         10  You got that, Grandma?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Nugent. Thank you very much for your testimony, I

         13  appreciate it.

         14                 MR. NUGENT: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I just want to

         16  take the prerogative of the Chair here to just

         17  comment briefly.

         18                 A couple of the witnesses have

         19  mentioned the word trivialization of the Charter

         20  Revision process. I think it is entirely correct

         21  that there has been a great deal of trivialization

         22  and of this process, but I don't want the voters, as

         23  Council Member Perkins and the people of the City of

         24  New York who are watching this, to get the

         25  impression of what we are talking about here,
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          2  though, is trivia, that the whole issue is not

          3  incredibly important. Because when we say that we

          4  are talking about trivialization of the Charter

          5  Revision process, what we mean is, or I hope what

          6  many, I think what the witnesses mean, what I mean,

          7  is that the Charter Revision process should be

          8  reserved for serious fundamental changes and serious

          9  debate and serious discussion about fundamental

         10  changes in the way this City governed. It is not

         11  intended, nor should it ever be used, for the

         12  purpose of enacting various grab bag legislative

         13  achievements. But that is not a trivial issue. What

         14  that goes to, in turning this process into that,

         15  what that goes to is a very undermining of the

         16  balance of power and the very role of elective

         17  government in the first place.

         18                 If it is this case, what whenever a

         19  Mayor intends to change some law of the City of New

         20  York with regard to gun free zones or the

         21  Administration of Children's Services or a merger of

         22  certain departments, if it is the case that whenever

         23  he intends to do that, he doesn't go to the City

         24  Council who are elected by the people of this City

         25  to consider those exact types of changes, he just
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          2  appoints a couple of cronies, sends them into a

          3  room, has them have a couple of obscure and

          4  relatively inaccessible hearings around the City and

          5  then have them report back something that he

          6  sugarcoats with a couple of, you know, puts up front

          7  the mom and apple pie issues, if that is to be the

          8  way that we are going to change the laws of the City

          9  of New York, we have changed, we have taken away the

         10  power of the people of this City to have any real

         11  input because nobody should be fooled into thinking

         12  that the people of this City are going to have any

         13  real input one way or the other on a 14 separate,

         14  completely different proposals, some of which are 17

         15  pages long, in terms of their substance, on issues

         16  as varied as the Administration for Children's

         17  Services gun-free zone, budgetary powers and

         18  immigrant services.

         19                 So no one is going to have any

         20  meaningful serious input. There has not been any

         21  meaningful public debate, and I want to stress once

         22  again, it has now been almost two hours, the Charter

         23  Revision Commission has not shown up. The Chair of

         24  the Charter Revision Commission has refused to show

         25  up, and what we are left with here, in response to
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          2  what we would like to ask and the members of this

          3  Committee would like to ask are very serious,

          4  substantive questions with regard to how much did

          5  this cost the people of the City of New York? Why on

          6  earth would you group 14 such separate proposals

          7  together. What we are left with is utter silence

          8  from this Commission, and the only thing that I can

          9  assume is if I were in this Commission's position,

         10  silence would be my choice, because anything spoken

         11  out loud would be utterly indefensible.

         12                 I want to say that Council Member

         13  Marshall joined us some time ago, she is a member of

         14  this Committee.

         15                 Would you like to say something,

         16  Council Member Marshall?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you. And

         19  then we are going to have Diana Fortuna of the

         20  Citizens Budget Commission testify.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Even though

         22  I know this is a Select Committee, it seems to me

         23  that we should take the advice of the gentlemen from

         24  Citizens Union. Some of these issues need to be

         25  dealt with legislatively, and I am really addressing
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          2  the chair. We ought to be looking at some of this

          3  legislatively to change it, even the structure of

          4  the way the Charter Revision Commissions are set up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: It is an

          6  excellent suggestion.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And some

          8  requirements that would require them to do certain

          9  specific things.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Unfortunately it

         11  requires change in state law, but it is the final

         12  recommendation and part of the report that the

         13  Council recommend changes to state law, so that

         14  Mayors in the future, not just in this City but

         15  around the state, and I would note, I don't think

         16  any other Mayor in this state to our knowledge has

         17  used this kind of cynical approach to Charter

         18  revision, but perhaps this Mayor's repeated efforts

         19  will encourage other Mayors, so it is a statewide

         20  concern.

         21                 Council Member Perkins suggested that

         22  there were a number of questions that were prepared

         23  by the staff or this Committee and I just sort of

         24  want to underline why it is that we held this

         25  hearing, and the reason it is that we invited the
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          2  chair of the Commission and the members of the

          3  Commission, all of whom shockingly were unable to

          4  attend at a 10:00, although they demanded of course

          5  on very short notice that all of the citizens of the

          6  City attend their hearings, and many members of this

          7  Council, members of this staff. And I know a lot of

          8  people in this audience took their time to go and

          9  testify before the Commission and it is

         10  disappointing that they don't have the courtesy, but

         11  not even the courtesy, courtesy is the wrong word

         12  because it is their responsibility to be here and we

         13  are disappointed, but what we wanted to ask them was

         14  why would anyone couple 14 utterly unrelated

         15  proposals into one ballot question. Did they think

         16  that the five hearings crammed into a one-week

         17  period that they held provided for adequate public

         18  comment? What was the cost of their commission and

         19  what is the ongoing cost of their commission?

         20                 We wanted to know regarding -- there

         21  were allegations at the Bronx hearing, for example,

         22  was insulting given its remote location and

         23  intentionally intended to suppress public

         24  participation.

         25                 We wanted to know, for example, they
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          2  held two public forums on substantive matters. For

          3  example, in the budgetary proposals there was 45

          4  minutes allotted to it. We spent more than two hours

          5  here in this forum itself, and we are not even

          6  considering proposing major changes to the voters,

          7  we are just commenting on changes that have already

          8  been proposed. How could 45 minutes of discussion

          9  with six experts, who are allotted four minutes a

         10  piece, how could that possibly constitute meaningful

         11  public participation?

         12                 We want to know why it is that they

         13  chose this year? They could have certainly, by law

         14  they certainly were entitled to wait until next year

         15  to make their proposals, next year being a

         16  presidential election year, and more voters would

         17  actually be voting. Why on earth would they choose a

         18  year to propose changes as sweeping as these on as

         19  many varied topics at a time when it is expected

         20  that five to ten percent of the voters are going to

         21  actually turn out to vote, since there are so few

         22  contested elections. Why would they do that?

         23                 What do we get? We get nothing. And I

         24  think that the reason that we get nothing is because

         25  there is no respect for this process, and there is
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          2  not serious intention. Let me say it one more time

          3  very clearly so the people can understand.

          4                 The reason that we are having this

          5  hearing and that there is no one sitting there

          6  across from us, on behalf of the Commission to

          7  defend their proposals, is because they don't want a

          8  public debate. They don't want you to know what the

          9  actual substance of these proposals are.

         10                 As my colleague said, it is bait and

         11  switch, it is rope a dope. There is a very clear

         12  intention here that no one should know so that the

         13  voter goes into the ballot, closes the curtain

         14  behind him or her, sees the contested election,

         15  whatever election it is they are voting on, judge

         16  race or various City Council races, and then, oh,

         17  notices, well, there is this proposal. Well, let me

         18  read about it. And what do they read about it? And

         19  they read this sugar coated, misdirection,

         20  misleading proposal on gun-free school zones and

         21  they say sounds pretty good to me. And they don't

         22  know the substance, there is no intention for them

         23  to know the substance, and you know, if the

         24  Commission sends out more, the Commission said their

         25  effort, we have heard that they are planning to do,
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          2  and we would have liked to have asked them about

          3  their efforts to educate the voters in this mass

          4  mailing that is going to go out, well, you know, we

          5  would like to have mor confidence that that would

          6  actually mean meaningful public debate.

          7                 Given the Commission's actions thus

          8  far, given their unwillingness to show up here,

          9  giving their use of grouping together questions that

         10  are unrelated, I can only assume that that mailing

         11  will constitute more misdirection, more misleading

         12  of the public, and I think this is a serious matter

         13  and I wish they were here to discuss it.

         14                 Diana Fortuna, of the Citizens Budget

         15  Commission.

         16                 MS. FORTUNA: Good morning. My name is

         17  Diana Fortuna, and I am President of the Citizens

         18  Budget Commission, a non-profit, nonpartisan

         19  research group that is devoted to improving fiscal

         20  practices and service delivery in New York City and

         21  New York State. And thank you for the opportunity to

         22  testify today.

         23                 The CBC has analyzed the substance of

         24  the major changes to the budget process included in

         25  the Charter Revision Commission proposal.
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          2                 Our conclusion is that while the

          3  goals of the three changes proposed are positive,

          4  the measures themselves are flawed and would

          5  ultimately prove counter-productive.

          6                 One of the measures purports to

          7  further a critical goal, using budget surpluses

          8  prudently, but it actually embraces an imprudent

          9  approach.

         10                 Two of the proposals have laudable

         11  intents - discouraging excessive spending, and

         12  ensuring that tax increases have broad support.

         13  However, the mechanisms by which these goals are

         14  pursued are flawed and as a result it would lead to

         15  unintended negative consequences.

         16                 On balance then, the Citizens Budget

         17  Commission finds that these changes would discourage

         18  budgetary reform rather than advance it, and

         19  therefore we oppose them.

         20                 Let me explain our analysis of the

         21  three proposals in turn.

         22                 We are blessed at this time with an

         23  incredibly robust economy, a stronger one than many

         24  of us recall in our lifetimes. One dramatic

         25  manifestation of that economic strength for the City
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          2  of New York is the budget surplus.

          3                 The 1999 surplus of over $2 billion

          4  represented an important opportunity for citizens

          5  and for elected officials. However, rather than take

          6  advantage of that opportunity to improve the City's

          7  long-term fiscal position, the City's leadership has

          8  instead taken a more expedient route, using the

          9  surplus to make it easier to balance this year's

         10  budget. This was accomplished through the device of

         11  prepaying debt service.

         12                 The problem with this action is that

         13  a surplus is a non-recurring phenomenon. To be

         14  prudent, officials should use a surplus only to pay

         15  for one-time expenditures.

         16                 Appropriate one-time expenses could

         17  include reducing the principal on long-term debt,

         18  pay-as-you-go capital or payments into a real rainy

         19  day fund.

         20                 One-time resources should not be used

         21  to pay for recurring expenses. Doing so perpetuates

         22  the out-year gaps that we face and it fails to take

         23  advantage of the current economic boom to put the

         24  City's finances in better order.

         25                 So, what does this proposal do to
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          2  address this problem? It enshrines in the Charter

          3  itself current imprudent practice, by requiring that

          4  at least half of any surplus recognized during a

          5  fiscal year be used to prepay a future year's debt

          6  service.

          7                 There is nothing new about using a

          8  surplus to prepay debt service. For many years, this

          9  has been how the City has spent its surplus because

         10  it is the easiest way to roll a surplus from one

         11  year to the next under GAAP accounting rules.

         12                 However, what is new is to require

         13  that surplus funds be put to any particular use, and

         14  certainly it is new to require them to be used in a

         15  way that is not prudent.

         16                 It is bad enough that City officials

         17  use surplus funds in this manner, it is even worse

         18  to institutionalize the practice.

         19                 The second budget measure seeks to

         20  limit growth in the budget to the rate of inflation.

         21                 The intent of this measure is

         22  laudable and one that CBC supports, which is to

         23  provide a deterrent to excessive expenditure

         24  increases and to make public officials justify

         25  increases of spending beyond inflation.
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          2                 Unfortunately, because this measure

          3  is more likely to lead to behavior that circumvents

          4  that requirement, the likely outcome will be to

          5  stimulate budget gimmicks, thereby reducing

          6  accountability and transparency in the budget

          7  process.

          8                 This would be a shame because in

          9  comparison with other jurisdictions and notably in

         10  comparison with the State of New York, the City's

         11  budget now is fairly easy to understand, as public

         12  budgets go.

         13                 Here are some examples of the types

         14  of gimmicks we are concerned about. First, City

         15  officials could get around the cap by classifying

         16  spending as off budget and therefore outside the

         17  limit. Even without the Charter provision this has

         18  been occurring with the shifting of debt service

         19  paid by the Transitional Finance Authority, in order

         20  to reduce the apparent rate of spending increase in

         21  the executive budget.

         22                 Second, since the recommended measure

         23  applies only to the Executive and Adopted Budgets,

         24  another likely outcome is that elected officials

         25  could agree to increase spending later in the year
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          2  through budget modifications, where there would not

          3  be an equivalent level of public information and

          4  attention.

          5                 This would distort the presentation

          6  of the executive and adopted budgets.

          7                 The third proposal seeks to

          8  discourage tax increases by requiring that any new

          9  tax or increase in an existing tax, other than the

         10  property tax, be passed by a two-thirds majority of

         11  the Council. If the Mayor opposed such an increase

         12  and vetoed it, a four-fifths majority would be

         13  required to override that veto.

         14                 The intent of this measure is to make

         15  it more difficult politically to raise taxes, and

         16  the property tax is exempt so that it can be relied

         17  upon to balance the budget in the event of

         18  unforeseen events during the year and because any

         19  limit in the property tax might jeopardize the

         20  City's bond rating.

         21                 Unfortunately, the likely affect of

         22  this measure is that it will distort tax policy in a

         23  way that would be economically harmful. The measure

         24  would create a bias in favor of the property tax for

         25  needed revenues at a time when the City's property
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          2  tax already applied in a way that puts an excessive

          3  burden on job creating uses.

          4                 Currently the effective tax rate on

          5  commercial property is more than five times the rate

          6  for one and two-family homes. Drawing more revenue

          7  from the source without reforming it will deter

          8  economic expansion.

          9                 In closing, I should note that many

         10  of the arguments I have outlined here this morning

         11  are included in your Committee's report on the

         12  Charter Revision package, which I thought was a

         13  thoughtful exploration of the budget issues.

         14                 And in sum, the Citizens Budget

         15  Commission opposes these measures, because they will

         16  make the budget process worse, not better.

         17                 Mechanistic protections from bad

         18  fiscal practices are always prone to manipulation,

         19  and citizens must rely as well on the electoral

         20  process to elect leaders who embrace the right

         21  fiscal goals.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         24                 Any further questions?

         25                 Thank you. And I just want to echo
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          2  your final point, that the bottom line in terms of,

          3  you know, whenever you put gimmicks in a process to

          4  control spending, the bottom line is the final

          5  control is for the public to elect the right elected

          6  official to make the right decisions and to impose

          7  theoretical constraints upon elected officials,

          8  which are so open to the gimmicks you describe, and

          9  I am sure the Mayor's Office and others are already

         10  considering all the gimmicks that you laid out for

         11  us, are just ultimately meaningless.

         12                 MS. FORTUNA: And we already do have

         13  some gimmicks, but we fear that this would really

         14  lead to a proliferation of them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         16                 MS. FORTUNA: Thanks.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: The next

         18  testimony is from Fred Feibusch. Thank you for your

         19  patience. We appreciate you taking the time to be

         20  with us.

         21                 Please state your name for the record

         22  and have at it.

         23                 MR. FEIBUSCH: My name is Fred

         24  Feibusch, and I am the President of the Bronx Mental

         25  Retardation and Developmental Disabilities Council,
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          2  a voluntary group of family members, professionals

          3  and advocates who serve in an official advisory

          4  capacity to the New York City Department of Mental

          5  Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism Services,

          6  as well as the New York State Office of Mental

          7  Retardation and Developmental Disabilities.

          8                 One of the 14 proposals in the

          9  Charter revision speaks to merge the New York City

         10  Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation

         11  and Alcoholism Services with the Department of

         12  Health, a proposal that we have opposed for almost

         13  two years, and which has generated a great deal of

         14  concern and controversy in the Health, Mental Health

         15  and Mental Retardation communities.

         16                 As a result of these concerns, the

         17  City Council has not acted on the merger and we

         18  thank you for being responsive to these concerns.

         19                 That is how democracy is supposed to

         20  work - government listening to the concerns of the

         21  people that it represents, even if those people

         22  represent a small minority group, such as people

         23  with mental retardation and their families.

         24                 We were astounded to learn over the

         25  summer that the merger was coming back as a Charter
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          2  Revision proposal and that despite the fact that it

          3  once again generated significant controversy at the

          4  hearings in August, it has been included in the

          5  final 14 proposals.

          6                 We seriously question this attempt to

          7  write the merger into the City Charter. When the

          8  City Council chose not to act on the merger, and as

          9  little as five percent of the electorate is expected

         10  to vote in this off-year election.

         11                 In fact, the entire process in which

         12  the merger has been proposed since its inception

         13  only confirms our fear that our voices will not be

         14  heard in the proposed super department of Public

         15  Health.

         16                 The Administration has not made its

         17  case that the merger will benefit people with mental

         18  retardation and their families. Confirming our worst

         19  fear, the rationale for the merger only addresses

         20  the needs of the mentally ill, reinforcing the

         21  confusion between the two populations, the mentally

         22  ill and the mentally retarded, whose needs are quite

         23  distinct, and ultimately ignores the concerns of the

         24  mental retardation community.

         25                 Further adding to our concern that we
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          2  will be hurt if we are lumped together with other

          3  diverse public functions in the proposed Department

          4  of Public Health, the Charter Revision lumps the

          5  merger issue with 13 dissimilar proposals.

          6                 The issue is clear to us, and we are

          7  happy to hear that it is clear to you as well, the

          8  merger is a controversial proposal of questionable

          9  merit, while it may benefit some there is serious

         10  concern that the mental retardation community has

         11  nothing to gain and potentially much to lose. The

         12  City Council has heard this concern and chosen not

         13  to act. The general electorate has not been informed

         14  of the merits and risks of this merger. How could

         15  they with just a few hearings held on these issues

         16  at the end of the summer. It would be an insult to

         17  our democratic process for the merger to be written

         18  into the City Charter as a result of this flawed

         19  Charter Revision process.

         20                 We hope to have your support in

         21  defeating the Charter Revision proposal, and we

         22  thank you once again for hearing us.

         23                 And if I may, I would like to read a

         24  letter from one of our parent members who is not

         25  able to be here today.
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          2                 My name is Anna Mae Vener, and I am

          3  the mother of Lloyd, a man who is severely multiply

          4  handicapped. I am opposed to the proposed City

          5  Charter Revision for several reasons: First, the

          6  procedure was not democratic with only about three

          7  months of deliberation and only six public hearings,

          8  all held in August when many people could not

          9  attend.

         10                 Secondly, many of the issues could

         11  have been legislated and do not require Charter

         12  Revision. One of these issues is the merger of the

         13  Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and

         14  Alcoholism Services into the Department of Health.

         15                 This issue was before the City

         16  Council for almost two years. They did not support

         17  it. By including it in the Charter Revision, the

         18  Administration is trying to subvert the will of the

         19  City Council.

         20                 We parents, advocates and

         21  professionals, for people who are mentally retarded

         22  and/or developmentally disabled, fought for about 30

         23  years to reach the point at which we stand with a

         24  separate, first rate, Department of Mental Health,

         25  Mental Retardation and Alcoholism Services, which
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          2  functions efficiently, whose staff members are

          3  accessible and helpful. We want to keep it that way,

          4  we do not want to become a small part of the huge

          5  and not very efficient Department of Health, because

          6  we fear that no matter what promises are made now,

          7  our children and their services will get lost in the

          8  shuffle.

          9                 We do not want to live in fear of

         10  their losing all the good programs that have been

         11  developed through the cooperative effort of

         12  legislators, professionals, advocates and parents.

         13                 If this merger takes place, those

         14  most in need of our protection, our citizens who are

         15  mentally retarded and developmentally disabled, will

         16  be irreparably hurt. I ask you to protect my son and

         17  all disabled citizens by voting no on the issue of

         18  Charter Revision.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you. Just

         21  for the benefit of who are watching from home, we

         22  are having a hearing on the subject of the Mayor's

         23  Charter Revision proposal which will be on the

         24  ballot this November.

         25                 Let me just see if I can understand
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          2  exactly what you are saying, because I think it

          3  echos exactly how I feel.

          4                 First of all, you would say that the

          5  merger of the Department of Health and the

          6  Department of Mental Retardation is an extremely

          7  complicated issue, is it not?

          8                 MR. FEIBUSCH: Yes, very complicated.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And have you

         10  looked at the proposal of the Charter Revision

         11  Commission? It is like 17 pages long with regard to

         12  all of the different details.

         13                 MR. FEIBUSCH: Well, there has really

         14  not been a great deal of sharing of details of the

         15  merger plan.

         16                 In fact, very shortly after it was

         17  proposed, the current Commissioner of the Department

         18  of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

         19  Services was also appointed as the Commissioner of

         20  the Department of Health, now being called a defacto

         21  merger, and in fact if you look at the rationale,

         22  they say well we have had a defacto merger anyway,

         23  nothing terrible has happened, let's go forward.

         24  There has really not been any kind of serious

         25  examination. But what the impact has been since the
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          2  time that one Commissioner is serving in two roles,

          3  there has been no hearings, in fact we serve on an

          4  official -- we are on an advisory board that meets

          5  regularly with the Department of Mental Health and

          6  Mental Retardation with a separate bureau and it has

          7  never been discussed on the agenda. We have really

          8  been kept in the dark.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So the bottom

         10  line is there is an extremely complicated issue, at

         11  which there has been extraordinary little public

         12  input and to ask the average voter to make a

         13  decision upon this extremely complicated issue,

         14  which has a great impact on the lives of many, many

         15  New Yorkers, on the basis of 14 words at the bottom

         16  of a ballot proposal which covers a great deal of

         17  other ground is to your mind insulting to the

         18  community that you represent and to the voters

         19  themselves.

         20                 MR. FEIBUSCH: Absolutely. And to put

         21  it together with some of the other proposals such

         22  as, which may seem acceptable to people, gun-free

         23  school zones, it really is insulting, and in fact,

         24  the fact that the gun-free school zones issue may

         25  appear first, it is doubtful to us that anybody will
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          2  really even look to the bottom of the list.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Who is against

          4  gun-free school zones, right.

          5                 Council Member Carrion.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. And to ensure that I don't massacre

          8  your name, is it Feibusch?

          9                 MR. FEIBUSCH: Feibusch.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Mr. Feibusch,

         11  I am glad you are here testifying.

         12                 MR. FEIBUSCH: Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And

         14  unfortunately, we didn't have the benefit of having

         15  the Charter Revision Commission representatives

         16  here, so unfortunately we are in a situation where

         17  these Charter Revision proposals have been lumped

         18  together into one question and I think that there is

         19  a sense from, we share your sense of being insulted

         20  as voters and New Yorkers and that these issues are

         21  too important. So, it is almost an exercise in

         22  futility to begin to even discuss the merits, and I

         23  recall having this discussion the last time around

         24  where we were frustrated because we couldn't get to

         25  the merits of individual proposals, and the cynicism
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          2  was such that it is very frustrating for us.

          3                 But you mentioned one thing, very

          4  practical, that we can address, which is that your

          5  organization and its associates are doing something

          6  to educate the public and to get the message out

          7  that we should vote this down --

          8                 MR. FEIBUSCH: Yes, we are.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Why don't you

         10  share with us what it is that you are doing and who

         11  you are working with, because in the ensuing days up

         12  until November 2nd there might be some coordination

         13  that could take place with other organizations and

         14  there might be some good ideas that you can share

         15  with the rest of us and the listeners at home.

         16                 MR. FEIBUSCH: Well, we are one group

         17  from the Bronx of parents, advocates and

         18  professionals. We are only one of five borough

         19  groups, similar groups who are also very concerned

         20  and have been for the last two years, all of us are

         21  reaching out to our members, informing them that

         22  there is an issue on the ballot that affects people

         23  with mental retardation. Very, very few people are

         24  aware of that, and despite the fact of whether --

         25  the Bronx is very clear that we are telling our
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          2  membership to vote no on the Charter Revision. Other

          3  groups may be informing people to vote their own

          4  conscience, even to let them know, because very few

          5  people are aware.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: How far is

          7  your reach, in terms of numbers? How many members do

          8  you have?

          9                 MR. FEIBUSCH: The Bronx group

         10  represents about 800 individuals, including

         11  professionals from 75 agencies, we are reaching out

         12  to about 4,000 family members. The people most

         13  alarmed about this issue are family members and the

         14  reason that family members are most alarmed is if

         15  you look back in the history of mental retardation,

         16  when there was abuse, when there was

         17  institutionalization, it happened during a time when

         18  the government structure was such that mental

         19  retardation concerns were lumped together with

         20  larger departments. This is very clearly a step

         21  backwards. That is what we have argued for the last

         22  two years and the parents are the ones who were most

         23  alarmed because they go back many years, they see

         24  this as a step in the wrong direction.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Feibusch.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

          4  much for your testimony.

          5                 Next we have Eric Joerss from the

          6  Common Cause of New York.  Identify yourself for the

          7  record and have at it.

          8                 MR. JOERSS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          9  My name is Eric Joerss, I am an organizer for Common

         10  Cause New York.

         11                 Common Cause New York's mission has

         12  been for about 30 years now to promote open,

         13  accountable and honest government, so my remarks

         14  will be brief and more to the point. My remarks will

         15  be regarding the process of the Charter Revision as

         16  opposed to the specific proposals themselves which

         17  other groups have already come up and I think very

         18  eloquently spoke on.

         19                 We had in a ten-week process, the

         20  first three weeks of which were behind closed doors

         21  with a 250-page report released on to the public,

         22  which I think the initial report had 40 some odd

         23  proposals. That, combined with incredibly limited

         24  seating for people to come out, the meetings being

         25  held in the first two weeks of August, again showing
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          2  the public not only that the public isn't wanted

          3  there, but that they are going to do everything

          4  possible to make sure the public isn't there. That

          5  combined then with the 14-point question, which,

          6  again, limits the input of the public and of groups

          7  such as Common Cause and of other groups to be able

          8  to figure out what is good from these, what is bad

          9  from these, has been not only incredibly arrogant,

         10  but I think a broad misuse of governmental power.

         11                 Mr. Mastro twice this summer, I heard

         12  him say things, when asked are these appropriate

         13  charter questions, his answer was the City Council

         14  has refused to take them up, therefore, yes, they

         15  are appropriate Charter questions.

         16                 And another one of his answers was,

         17  when asked how do you link these 14 questions all

         18  together as one, and what is the actual intellectual

         19  linkage here, said simply these are all changes that

         20  would serve the City well. And to not even pretend

         21  that these are all linked, again, shows a contempt

         22  for the electorate I believe.

         23                 Common Cause has urged from the

         24  beginning a vote no on this, as we did last year, we

         25  organized against it. At one point Chairman Mastro
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          2  asked what does Common Cause want, if we have our

          3  proposals, if they could change it what would we

          4  want? Basically reports say because this process is

          5  so bad, you could give us our entire legislative

          6  wish list and we would have to turn it down.

          7                 The checks and balances issue, as

          8  opposed to how it relates to the City Council,

          9  obviously it strips power from the City Council,

         10  thereby also stripping power from community boards.

         11  We have urged a vote no on that issue as well, or

         12  because of that as well. We had all five or five of

         13  the leading civic groups in the City all come

         14  together in the summer for the first time at least

         15  in my memory and a lot of our memories to come out

         16  in a joint statement against this.

         17                 Once again, in keeping it brief,

         18  Common Cause's position is certainly vote no on

         19  this, we will be organizing a vote no, we will be

         20  getting the word out to our members and we hope that

         21  the Council will do what they can to work against

         22  these proposals.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         24                 MR. JOERSS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for
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          2  your testimony.

          3                 Glenn Pasanen of the City Project.

          4                 Welcome, Glenn.

          5                 MR. PASANEN: Thank you. We meet

          6  again.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

          8                 MR. PASANEN: My name is Glenn

          9  Pasanen, I am Associate Director of City Project, a

         10  budget monitoring group and a good government group.

         11  This is our second year in a row of coming before

         12  this Committee to oppose a process that we find to

         13  be unacceptable, and I commend the Committee for

         14  holding this hearing. I hope it has the intended

         15  effect.

         16                 We are urging everyone to vote no on

         17  Charter reform this year. I would read briefly from

         18  a flyer that we are sending around to as many places

         19  as we can trying to explain what was a bizarre

         20  process and to focus on the most important issues.

         21  Basically we think that because of the undemocratic

         22  consequences of many of the proposed changes, we

         23  urge a no vote on the single ballot question in

         24  November. Because as you know, of the single

         25  referendum, each voter gets only one vote on a
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          2  package that mixes undemocratic radical really

          3  changes with innocuous and even some attractive

          4  changes.

          5                 The Commission's attitude, I think we

          6  should note, towards the public was illustrated by

          7  one commission member and you can see this in the

          8  transcript, this Commission member said, "I believe

          9  to separate the 14 proposals would create undue

         10  confusion in the public mind, and it would increase

         11  the burden of the voters in terms of the education

         12  they would have to go through."

         13                 It should be noted that many of the

         14  proposals lack encouraging human rights and

         15  immigration reforms don't require constitutional

         16  action, only the normal Mayoral Council legislative

         17  process, as difficult as that occasionally is.

         18                 As we have been saying for several

         19  months, this Commission was unrepresentative,

         20  indifferent to public comment, and inappropriately

         21  staffed by City employees dependent on the Mayor. It

         22  cavalierly reviewed the entire Charter in less than

         23  ten summer weeks. Its attempts at professional

         24  research into 40 specific areas of interest were

         25  embarrassingly quick, thin and self-indulgent. The
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          2  chair of the Commission at one point said, well, the

          3  founding fathers wrote the federal constitution in

          4  one summer, and I checked my history books and noted

          5  in my testimony in Brooklyn one night that in fact

          6  the founding fathers spent well over a year debating

          7  the federal constitution, and we have a record of

          8  that debate in the federalist papers, and I took the

          9  trouble in my testimony, quoting from James Madison

         10  and Alexander Hamilton who really were talking about

         11  the balance of powers set of issues. And that is

         12  really what is I think at issue here, in terms of

         13  the budget which is our particular interest and our

         14  particular objection to this Commission's work.

         15                 The budget proposals, as you have

         16  heard from a variety of sources essentially transfer

         17  the balance of powers further from the Council and

         18  from the voting public to the Mayor. The idea that

         19  it would take a super majority of four-fifths to

         20  override a tax issue is, as far as I know,

         21  unprecedented in this part of the country, and what

         22  it says in rebuke to the Council I think in

         23  particular and to all of us in the public is

         24  extraordinary.

         25                 In explaining his push for the one
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          2  referendum question, the Commission's chair, former

          3  Deputy Mayor Randy Mastro, underlined the political

          4  expedience behind the Commission's creation. And he

          5  said, "the common theme of the 14 proposals is

          6  reforms that have served our City so well in recent

          7  years should become a permanent part of the way in

          8  which we do business."

          9                 Well, for City projects the

         10  referendum is in fact reflective of the way the

         11  Giuliani Administration does business -

         12  authoritarian, undemocratic and contemptuous of any

         13  opposition, and we urge everyone to vote no on the

         14  Charter proposals in November.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

         17  much, Mr. Pasanen.

         18                 Gene Russianoff, our last witness. If

         19  anyone else would like to testify, they should let

         20  the Sergeant-At-Arms know.

         21                 Gene Russianoff of NYPIRG.

         22                 MR. RUSSIANOFF: Good afternoon, Mr.

         23  Chairman, members of the Committee and staff. I will

         24  be brief and focus really on one point in my

         25  testimony. I am Gene Russianoff with the New York
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          2  Public Interest Research Group and like the other

          3  major civics in the City we are urging a no vote on

          4  the Charter proposals. Of the reasons why, I will

          5  highlight this one. The proposals will fuel higher

          6  property taxes and budget gimmicks just the opposite

          7  of what the Commission says it intends.

          8                 The Commission claims that their

          9  proposal will protect us from higher taxes. When you

         10  read the ballot question it says, and this is what

         11  voters are going to see when they go into the booth,

         12  that it requires a two-thirds vote of the City

         13  Council, instead of a simple majority to increase

         14  taxes or impose new taxes. That is false. Like many

         15  other things the Commission said during this summer

         16  and has said since it has put out its material.

         17                 The property tax is not covered by

         18  their proposal. As a result, it would become the

         19  only tax that a simple majority of the Council could

         20  raise.

         21                 All other taxes, for example, like

         22  those on hotel rooms, used by tourists, or taxes on

         23  utilities, would require a two-thirds vote of the

         24  Council. The result, home-owners, co-op and condo

         25  dwellers and even renters will be at a greatly
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          2  increased risk of higher property taxes. Why give

          3  the City an incentive to raise property taxes? The

          4  Charter Commission says that the property tax is

          5  needed "to balance the budget".

          6                 The Commission also cites concerns

          7  raised by bond raters who told them that you

          8  shouldn't hide the City's ability to deal with its

          9  budget problems in the future. Well, that is a logic

         10  that applies to all taxes, not just the property

         11  tax.

         12                 The Commission's other fiscal reforms

         13  are also fakes. For example, the spending cap in

         14  their proposal will just simply encourage officials

         15  to engage in fiscal gimmicks, by putting spending

         16  into off budget categories so it can claim to be

         17  meeting the mandate of keeping spending with

         18  inflation. Of course the cap can be lifted for any

         19  reason. Another fact left out of the ballot question

         20  that voters will read.

         21                 Why these unintended consequences? I

         22  think there are a couple of reasons, but the key is

         23  it is just a product of a miserable process. If you

         24  don't talk to other people in government, if you

         25  don't have a dialogue with the civic community, you
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          2  are going to come up with crumby proposals, and that

          3  is what the Commission has done.

          4                 In my testimony I lay out some of the

          5  reasons I am sure you have been hearing today for

          6  voting no, lumping all of the proposals together in

          7  an all or nothing choice, the really terrible

          8  process, truly in 20 years of City government this

          9  has been the saddest, sorriest process that I have

         10  had the misfortune to observe and participate in.

         11  And when you look at some of the specific proposals,

         12  you realize the Commission just simply did not do

         13  its homework.

         14                 To conclude, our election experts are

         15  now predicting a very, very small turnout on

         16  Election Day, with very few contested races around

         17  town. But there is a real reason to go to the poll

         18  and that is to vote no on the Charter proposal, this

         19  is as clearcut a chance as New Yorkers will ever get

         20  to show that you can't fool all of the voters all of

         21  the time.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  speak today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         25                 Any other witnesses?
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          2                 Very well. Before we conclude, I want

          3  to mention that Public Advocate Mark Green and the

          4  New York AIDS Coalition have both submitted written

          5  testimony which will be made part of the record, and

          6  I advise members of this Committee that it is our

          7  intention at some point to have between now and the

          8  near future to have another meeting of the Committee

          9  in which to actually adopt and recommend a report

         10  with any changes that collectively we think are

         11  important to the full Council.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me just

         13  say in that regard, for the record, that I would

         14  urge that we move quickly to adopt this report, to

         15  have a press conference to publicly announce it, and

         16  to encourage the public to vote no, and that this

         17  Council be first in that regard. I wish that we

         18  could, with the leadership of the Speaker and/or

         19  whoever, make sure that this Council is not too late

         20  or too silent about this because it is very, very

         21  urgent, as you have heard from the testimony and the

         22  cynicism underlying these proposals is expecting the

         23  City Council not to respond as quickly and

         24  effectively as it can as an institution. And I want

         25  to go on record to say that because it is a very
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          2  serious concern.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

          5                 Council Member Sabini.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thanks, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Just out of curiosity, if we have

          9  another meeting would we be asking once again for

         10  the members or staff of the Commission to attend?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: If the members of

         12  the staff of this Commission would like to attend,

         13  certainly we would love for them to attend.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I just think

         15  it is important that we continue to ask them and to,

         16  frankly, let the world know we are asking them,

         17  because I think there are -- unfortunately, because

         18  of their absence much of the discourse today was

         19  basically to bash the Commission, and we are

         20  probably not wrong in doing that, but there are

         21  serious governmental questions that should be raised

         22  that we need to know why certain things were put in,

         23  certain things weren't put in, and if we are going

         24  to rail about it, we should rail about it. We should

         25  also be prepared to ask the appropriate questions.
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          2  If they are not prepared to answer them, then shame

          3  on them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Fair enough.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You can't

          7  blame the chair --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: No, I am not.

          9  No, I just asked if we are going to have another

         10  hearing, could we invite them, that's all. I am not

         11  blaming the chair at all.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         13  to make it clear.  You are raising the questions,

         14  you have invited them to come --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right. But it

         16  is hard to ask questions without someone to answer

         17  them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

         19  Unfortunately they don't respond to us, and they

         20  don't respond to the people, but more importantly I

         21  believe they are not responding to the people of the

         22  City, and I think the voters of the City should be

         23  severely insulted by this attempt to actually insult

         24  their intelligence by trying to slip something past

         25  them.
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          2                 Thank you. Adjourned.

          3                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)

          4                 (The following testimony was read

          5  into the record.)

          6

          7  Testimony of:

          8  Mark Green

          9  Public Advocate for the City of New York

         10

         11                 Council Member Miller and members of

         12  the Select Committee on Charter Reform, this is the

         13  second time in two years that I submit testimony to

         14  you because, for the second time in two years, Mayor

         15  Giuliani has sought to use the extraordinary power

         16  to convene a Charter Commission not in response to a

         17  significant legal problem or financial crisis but to

         18  advance his own political agenda.

         19                 As you discuss in your report,

         20  Charter revision should be a very serious and

         21  deliberative process. That is why the Municipal Home

         22  Rule Law mandates that a Charter Commission review

         23  the entire Charter and gives a Charter Commission

         24  two years to complete its work. This law was never

         25  intended as a tool for frequent, politically
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          2  motivated tampering with the constitutional

          3  framework of New York City government.

          4                 By his own admission, Mayor Giuliani

          5  has created back-to-back Charter Commissions the

          6  past two summers to further his own political

          7  purposes - last year's to block the electorate from

          8  voting on a proposed City Council Yankee Stadium

          9  referendum and this year's to block me from

         10  succeeding to the mayoralty if the Mayor leaves

         11  office early. In both cases, the Mayor abused and

         12  distorted the authority granted by State law, using

         13  it to establish his own "privy councils" to

         14  circumvent the legislative process, inflate

         15  executive power and impose his will on the

         16  electorate.

         17                 I wholeheartedly agree with your

         18  conclusion that the Mayor has profoundly perverted

         19  the Charter Revision process so as to enable the

         20  Charter to be easily tampered with. He has set a

         21  dangerous precedent in which a mayoral Charter

         22  Commission can be convened at will to routinely

         23  preempt the legislature, dilute the powers of other

         24  elected officials and disrupt the balance of power

         25  that has been a cornerstone of New York City
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          2  government since unification over a century ago.

          3                 Fritz Schwarz, Jr., Chairman of the

          4  distinguished and diverse 1989 Charter Revision

          5  Commission has said, "The legitimacy of democratic

          6  governmental efforts are anchored in their

          7  processes." Where, as here, a process dictated by

          8  personal and political vendettas runs roughshod over

          9  other institutions of government, it is fatally

         10  flawed and can never yield a legitimate result.

         11                 As you correctly state in your

         12  report, both last year's Charter Commission and the

         13  current Mastro Commission lack any independence or

         14  balance. Both commissions were appointed by the

         15  Mayor without consultation or recommendations from

         16  other elected officials.

         17                 Last year, of the 12 appointed

         18  Commission members, all but one had ties to the

         19  Mayor, having either worked for him, raised money

         20  for him or served as a Mayoral appointee on some

         21  other commission or board.

         22                 Similarly most, if not all, of this

         23  year's Commission members are similarly current or

         24  former Mayoral advisors or appointees.

         25                 Chair Randy Mastro is a former Deputy
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          2  Mayor. Vice-Chair Richard J. Schwartz is a former

          3  senior advisor to the Mayor, a member of the Mayor's

          4  "tax cut commission", and heads an organization

          5  with a very large City contract. Ken Caruso

          6  represented the Mayor before the Campaign Finance

          7  Board during the 1997 Mayoral Campaign, and the

          8  other members were on the Mayor's 1993 transition

          9  team.

         10                 According to the research by the New

         11  York Public Interest Research Group, of the 15

         12  appointed members of the Mastro Commission, ten

         13  contributed to the Mayor's campaign.

         14                 Finally, most or all of the

         15  Commission staff are on loan from jobs in other

         16  mayoral agencies where they serve at the pleasure of

         17  the Mayor and are thus beholden to him.

         18                 The truncated time table of the

         19  Mastro Commission has, as your report concludes,

         20  resulted in "a process incapable of producing a well

         21  considered final work product", or yielding

         22  broad-based public participation.

         23                 The Mastro Commission held only five

         24  public meetings and two public forums during the

         25  summer months of July and August, and only six
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          2  public hearings - one in each borough clustered

          3  within a ten-day period and one to sum up - before

          4  proposing changes to the Charter.

          5                 All of the hearings were held in the

          6  evenings during the prime vacation month of August.

          7  Of the 325 people who testified, opposition to the

          8  Commission's procedures and proposals outnumbered

          9  favorable comments by three to one.

         10                 Almost without exception, their

         11  comments, and outrage, were met by a silent,

         12  stone-faced wall of commissioners who never asked a

         13  question or engaged a speaker in colloquy.

         14                 Few, if any, commissioners took notes

         15  and many came late or left early. Their lack of

         16  interest is not surprising since it was clear that

         17  the decisions were not up to them.

         18                 Some of them voted no or abstained

         19  during the final vote, but the transcript fails to

         20  record their identities. And in act, by the time

         21  that final vote on what to place on the ballot was

         22  taken, at a meeting convened at 4:00 p.m. on

         23  September 1st, the ballot proposals, and the final

         24  report, most likely had been printed, since they

         25  were forwarded to the Department of Justice on that
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          2  same day.

          3                 In contrast, the 1988/89 Charter

          4  Commissions deliberated for two and a half years,

          5  held 29 public meetings, 31 public hearings and

          6  hundreds of informal meetings with groups and

          7  individuals and operated a vast public education

          8  campaign.

          9                 Even if the Mastro Commission had

         10  taken a longer time to review the Charter and the

         11  proposed changes and even if this Commission had

         12  engaged in a better process, the fact remains that

         13  their conduct and their placement of a referendum on

         14  the November 2nd ballot violate the federal Voting

         15  Rights Act.

         16                 Under Section 5 of the Voting Rights

         17  Act, the Mastro Charter Commission must submit both

         18  its plan to place a proposition on the ballot and

         19  the substance of some of the proposals, including

         20  the cut-back on the Council's powers and the

         21  creation of a special election for a mayoral

         22  vacancy, to the Justice Department for

         23  "preclearance" before any such changes can be

         24  implemented. The Commission bears a burden of

         25  showing that its plans do not diminish the impact of
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          2  African-American and Latino voters.

          3                 In this regard, I am persuaded that

          4  they do, in fact, violate federal law, and I plan to

          5  submit formal objections to the Justice Department

          6  on three grounds:

          7                 First, as you document in your

          8  report, the process and procedures followed by the

          9  Mastro Commission over two summer months were

         10  fatally flawed because they thwarted true public

         11  participation, particularly among minority and other

         12  underserved communities.

         13                 Second, the timing of the referendum

         14  will impermissibly dilute the African-American and

         15  Latino vote since it is scheduled during the third

         16  year in New York City's four-year election cycle.

         17                 Third, both the budget and special

         18  election proposals on their face diminish the impact

         19  of African-American and Latino voters by reducing

         20  the power of the City Council, truncating the powers

         21  of the Public Advocate, and making it all but

         22  impossible for an African American or Latino

         23  candidate to win in a race to fill a vacancy in

         24  citywide office.

         25                 My argument to the Justice Department
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          2  is simple: A tainted process yields tainted results.

          3  Take, for example, the racial composition of the

          4  Mastro Commission. In a City that is more than half

          5  African-American, Latino and Asian, this year's

          6  Commission contained only two African-Americans,

          7  Karen Boykin-Towns and Imam Izak-el M. Pasha), one

          8  Latina, Amalia Betanzos, and one Asian-American,

          9  Yvonne Liu. There was no African-American or Latino

         10  commissioner present at the public hearings in

         11  Manhattan and Brooklyn, boroughs which are 46

         12  percent and 55 percent African-American and Latino

         13  respectively.

         14                 Only three of the 15 commissioners

         15  even bothered to attend all six hearings and, most

         16  significantly, Amalia Betanzos, the sole Latina

         17  Commission member, who also served on the 1998

         18  Giuliani Commission, showed up only at the first

         19  organizational meeting on July 1st where the only

         20  business was the announcement of the schedule, and

         21  the last meeting, on September 1st, where she

         22  unashamedly voted for all of the proposals she had

         23  not been present to review or deliberate.

         24                 Moreover, the meetings and hearings

         25  were frequently inaccessible and/or inconvenient for
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          2  minority voters. The only Bronx hearing was at

          3  Calvary Hospital, which is ten blocks from the

          4  nearest subway station, and the Staten Island

          5  hearing was at a location identified as inaccessible

          6  by public transportation.

          7                 The hearings were almost always in

          8  rooms too small for the numbers seeking access, and

          9  in Manhattan and Queens dozens of people were denied

         10  entrance and left without testifying.

         11                 Second, the referendum is being held

         12  during an off election year with the lowest possible

         13  rate of voter turn-out and this will have a

         14  disparate impact on African-American and Latino

         15  voters. Just a cursory look at the 1991 and 1995

         16  elections reveal that the"white - minority" gap in

         17  voting on propositions, which is always large, gets

         18  disproportionately larger as the vote gets smaller.

         19                 For example, in 1991, even with every

         20  City Council district on the ballot because of

         21  redistricting, only 21 percent of those registered

         22  actually voted and only ten percent, 11 percent and

         23  12 percent respectively voted on the three ballot

         24  propositions presented that year.

         25                 The number of African-Americans and
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          2  Latinos who voted on the three ballot propositions

          3  dropped off even further to less than half of the

          4  white vote on these proposals.

          5                 In 1995, there were four propositions

          6  on the ballot. If one looks at the 26 Assembly

          7  Districts which had a majority population of

          8  African-Americans and/or Latinos, 6.5 percent of

          9  those registered actually voted and only 2.6 percent

         10  voted on the propositions. Strikingly, this compares

         11  to an average 12.2 percent of the white registered

         12  voters who voted on all four propositions.

         13                 The Mastro Commission claims that its

         14  work is necessary to protect people of color from

         15  unlawful discrimination and to provide immigrant

         16  communities with all services the City offers are

         17  disingenuous and are completely undermined by

         18  putting forth a referendum during an off election

         19  year where the percentage of minority voter turnout

         20  is sure to be exceedingly low.

         21                 Of the 100,000 voters in this City of

         22  over 3.4 million registered voters who are likely to

         23  vote in this off-cycle election on revising the

         24  City's constitution, it is likely that only a tiny

         25  proportion will be African-American or Latino. As

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            120

          1  SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHARTER REFORM

          2  Gene Russianoff so appropriately stated to the

          3  Commission members at its opening meeting: "You've

          4  got to be kidding."

          5                 Third, the Commission proposes to

          6  change the Charter provision for filling mayoral

          7  vacancies in a manner that will significantly

          8  disadvantage African-American and Latino voters and

          9  will probably squeeze them out of all three Citywide

         10  elective offices. The current system is as follows:

         11  If the vacancy occurs before September 20th, the

         12  election takes place the following November. Under

         13  the current Charter and State Election Law, the

         14  candidates run with party labels, and a minority

         15  candidate of the Democratic Party, in which

         16  minorities make up a large proportion of the primary

         17  vote, can win the general election mayoralty with a

         18  plurality.

         19                 The Commission's proposal, in

         20  contrast, requires the Public Advocate to succeed as

         21  a caretaker for only a couple of months and a

         22  non-partisan special election for both Mayor and for

         23  the Public Advocate position, even though that

         24  vacancy may be only temporary, within 45-55 days,

         25  with a run-off if no one gets 40 percent on the
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          2  first round. This will have a damaging impact on

          3  African-American and Latino voters for the following

          4  reasons.

          5                 1) African-American and Latino voter

          6  turn-out in "special elections" is particularly low.

          7  In the 21 special elections for City Council,

          8  Assembly and State Senate seats over the past

          9  several years, the average turnout has been only 3.9

         10  percent of registered voters as compared to an

         11  average turnout for white districts of 9.4 percent.

         12                 This is disproportionately lower than

         13  the gap in the preceding and subsequent general

         14  November elections for the same offices.

         15                 2) Making the special elections

         16  non-partisan will further disadvantage

         17  African-American and Latino voters, who make up a

         18  much larger percentage of the Democratic primary

         19  vote than of the general vote.

         20                 3) The mayoral special election

         21  requires a run-off between the top two vote-getting

         22  candidates if no candidate achieves 40 percent of

         23  the vote.

         24                 An African-American or Latino

         25  candidate is highly unlikely to achieve 40 percent
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          2  in the first cut against a large field of candidates

          3  from various parties.

          4                 If an African-American or a Latino

          5  candidate is one of the top two vote-getters in the

          6  first round, he or she will have to win 50 percent,

          7  plus one of the total vote in a two-way run-off with

          8  no other candidates.

          9                 Absent a party primary system, the

         10  African-American or Latino candidate will not have

         11  the benefit of a united political party's support

         12  for the run-off -- probably against another

         13  Democrat.

         14                 4) The Commission's proposal also

         15  creates run-offs in the special elections for Public

         16  Advocate and Comptroller, thus raising the threshold

         17  of exclusion for all of the Citywide elective

         18  offices, not just the Mayor.

         19                 In order to comply with State General

         20  City Law 2-(a), the Commission also proposes to

         21  sharply reduce the power of the Public Advocate's

         22  Office, a position expressly designed by the 1989

         23  Schwarz Charter Commission as a stepping stone to

         24  political power for African-American and Latino

         25  candidates.
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          2                 In fact, several members of the

          3  Shwarz Commission, as well as minority organizations

          4  such as the NAACP, spoke in favor of retaining the

          5  Office of the Public Advocate - then the City

          6  Council President - because they wanted to provide

          7  an opportunity for an African-American or Latino

          8  candidate to be an independently elected Citywide

          9  official, and not be a token, ticket balancer chosen

         10  by the mayoral candidate, such as the Vice-mayor

         11  would be. The Commission's proposal would eliminate

         12  the Public Advocate's role as presiding officer of

         13  the City Council, creating a completely anomalous

         14  and unworkable situation in which the Public

         15  Advocate will remain a member of the City Council

         16  under the language of Charter 22 (a) but without

         17  either a seat or the role of presiding officer.

         18                 This hurried, poorly thought-through

         19  effort to change the rules of succession had only

         20  one purpose in is original form, a you note in your

         21  report, which was to prohibit me from succeeding to

         22  the mayoralty should the Mayor win the senate race

         23  in 2000.

         24                 Although it will not affect me since

         25  the Commission backed off in the face of massive
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          2  public opposition, it will affect the future

          3  structure of City government and undermine the 1989

          4  Commission's goal of creating a significant platform

          5  position for minority candidates.

          6                 At the very least, the proposed new

          7  structure will make it more difficult for future

          8  Public Advocates to introduce and co-sponsor

          9  legislation. It's clear that all of these items were

         10  put on the ballot solely for political reasons not

         11  to make the City a better-run democracy.

         12                 Finally, it is imperative for the

         13  Council to understand that in addition to increasing

         14  the Mayor's powers at the expense of the Council,

         15  the Commission's budget proposals significantly cut

         16  back this body's expanded power in a way that

         17  disparately impacts the African-American an Latino

         18  communities you represent.

         19                 The 1989 Schwarz Commission, by

         20  design, restructured the City Council and expanded

         21  the number of seats specifically to broaden

         22  representation of minority groups in the Council.

         23                 By requiring a two-thirds majority to

         24  pass any local law or resolution imposing new taxes

         25  or increasing an existing tax and by requiring a
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          2  super supermajority, four-fifths vote, to override a

          3  mayoral veto, it is feasible that the seven

          4  Republican members of this Council, who by and large

          5  do not represent substantial numbers of

          6  African-American or Latino voters, along with only

          7  four other colleagues, would effectively block the

          8  will of the rest of the Council and the constituents

          9  you represent. Such a scenario clearly frustrates

         10  the goals of the 1989 Shwartz Commission to

         11  increase, not decrease, the African-American and

         12  Latino representation.

         13                 For all of these reasons, and more, I

         14  commend your report, urge you to join me in filing a

         15  formal protest with the Department of Justice, and

         16  recommend all registered voters to make it to the

         17  polls on November 2nd and send the Mayor a

         18  resounding"No" vote.

         19

         20  Testimony of:

         21  New York AIDS Coalition

         22

         23                 Good morning, members of the City

         24  Council.

         25                 My name is Amy Herman, and I am the
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          2  Executive Director of the New York AIDS Coalition,

          3  NYAC, a coalition of over 200 organizations

          4  concerned about or providing ADIS services to people

          5  across our city.

          6                 As you know, the Charter Revision

          7  Commission has set forth fourteen proposals to

          8  revise our City's charter. These proposals will be

          9  presented to voters on November 2nd via a ballot

         10  initiative.

         11                 While several proposals are

         12  attractive, NYAC is concerned that there are a few

         13  that spell trouble for the delivery of health care

         14  services in our City. These are:

         15                 A proposal to merge the Departments

         16  of Health and Mental Health, Mental Retardation  and

         17  Alcoholism Services into a new Department of Public

         18  Health; and three proposed changes to the City's

         19  budget process that would mandate:

         20                 1) spending caps.

         21                 2) spending of surplus revenues.

         22                 3) severe restrictions on revenue

         23  increases.

         24                 Below I will provide detail about why

         25  the public should vote no and suggest steps that the
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          2  City Council can take to ensure a "No" vote.

          3                 There has been little sharing with

          4  the public about details of the new Department of

          5  Public health. The only "plan" seen by my staff has

          6  been a 34-page document, "DPH 2000" dated June 28th,

          7  1999.

          8                 While full of nicely laid out flow

          9  charts, there is no detail about programs and

         10  services. It is unclear how existing services would

         11  be delivered, changed or improved.

         12                 There is no detail about the impact

         13  of the change, what it would accomplish and why it

         14  is even necessary.

         15                 For instance, what would happen to

         16  the Anonymous Counseling and Testing ACT sites for

         17  AIDS testing?

         18                 What would happen to the array of DOH

         19  sponsored HIV prevention programs?

         20                 What about sexually transmitted

         21  diseases and tuberculosis services?

         22                 What would happen to the immunization

         23  and monitoring services?

         24                 While the June 28th document does

         25  call for the creation of an Office of Minority and
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          2  Immigrant health and a few other sound proposals, it

          3  is NYAC's belief that these could be created

          4  possibly without a merger of DOH and DMH.

          5                 The Charter Revision Commission

          6  contends that services will not be impacted. In a

          7  July 22nd report the Commission mentioned that

          8  "members of the City's health and mental hygiene

          9  communities, consumers, providers and advocacy

         10  groups should be assured that the City's support for

         11  the programs provided by these agencies, DOH and

         12  DMH, will continue after their merger." However, as

         13  you well know, as recently as this year, drastic

         14  cuts to HIV prevention services, family planning and

         15  the Managed Care Consumer Assistance Program, which

         16  are administered via the Department of health, were

         17  proposed. Thanks to the efforts of you, our City

         18  Council, these cuts were rescinded.

         19                 We are also concerned about the

         20  proposal to change New York City's budget process.

         21  All three of the proposed changes would limit the

         22  City Council's ability to rescind budget cuts and

         23  enhance resources for underserved New Yorkers. If

         24  changes to the New York City budget process had

         25  taken place in November of 1998, then the City
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          2  Council would have been unable to stop over $9

          3  million in cuts to the Department of Health and

          4  Health and Hospitals Corporation this year. Spending

          5  limits may have significantly impacted the creation

          6  of vitally needed HIV and other public health

          7  services in this year's budget.

          8                 Last year, this City had an almost $2

          9  billion surplus. Ample resources from future

         10  surpluses must be directed to support the City's

         11  social and health care services. Limiting the

         12  ability of the City Council to increase or impose

         13  taxes creates a major obstacle in creating revenue

         14  for vitally needed programs in our city.

         15                 Although we have enjoyed a surplus

         16  for several years, the ability to generate revenue

         17  must exist for leaner and more austere times.

         18                 While some of the fourteen issues may

         19  be viewed as positive initiatives, i.e. making the

         20  Commission on Human Rights a Charter agency;

         21  protecting immigrants' rights to access City

         22  services, and establishing the Mayor's Office of

         23  Immigrant Affairs and Language Services as a Charter

         24  agency, it is our firm belief that the Charter does

         25  not need to be revised to make these things happen.
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          2  Many of the proposals can be done by thoughtfully

          3  and meaningfully engaging communities and working in

          4  tandem with the City Council.

          5                 It is wiser and sounder health policy

          6  to have the management of DOH and DMH and community

          7  advocates directly involved in merger discussions.

          8  The DMH/DOH merger along with the plan to diminish

          9  the City Council's budget power must not be

         10  railroaded by the voters of this City. New Yorkers

         11  will only be given one vote to deny or affirm the

         12  wild array of proposed changes to our City's

         13  constitution.

         14                 For these reasons, we urge New

         15  Yorkers to vote "No" regarding Charter revision. We

         16  hope that in the remaining weeks before November 2nd

         17  that members of the City Council will use all

         18  avenues to inform their constituencies about the

         19  pitfalls of the Charter Revision Commission's

         20  proposals. This can be done via constituent

         21  newsletters, alerts, articles in community

         22  newspapers, editorials and posting information on

         23  relevant websites. On behalf of the New York AIDS

         24  Coalition, we thank the City Council for this

         25  opportunity to testify about why New Yorkers must

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            131

          1  SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHARTER REFORM

          2  vote "No" to the revision of the City's Charter on

          3  November 2nd.

          4                 (End of written testimony.)

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 20th day of October 1999.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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